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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors™) of C.banner
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Hongguo
International Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) is pleased to
announce the audited consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BB
i -y o S RS D

together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31 December

2010 as follows:

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating profit

Income tax expenses

Net profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Gross profit margin
Operating profit margin
Net profit margin

Earnings per share
— Basic

Balance of cash and bank deposits
Bank loans

Liquidity ratio
Gearing ratio

Average inventory turnover period
Average receivables turnover period
Average payable turnover period

Note: Liquidity ratio = current assets/current liabilities; gearing ratio = notes payable

and bank loans/total assets

T 3 B R PR AT PR R (R B P2 PR A R
Al ([ARAR D #EE((#EFE]) & (EHG ) AR
A B HHH B AR (AL ) #ZE 2011412 H31H
IR AR 2 B 47 SE A B 2010412 H 31 A R4

Year ended 31 December

BE12 H31 HILEE

2010
20104
RMB’000
AR¥Tt

1,574,963
972,292
239,705
(67,643)

169,855
%

61.7
15.2
10.8

RMB cents
PN

9.99

FER L BF AR
2011
2011 4¢
RMB’000
ANR# Tt
g 2,043,696
EH 1,298,261
G-I 405,377
ST AR BH 32 (115,199)
A mIRE RS R AN ENG AR
290,178
%
FEA R 63.5
A =R 19.8
I 2 14.2
RMB cents
NG
5 L |
— AR 16.28
31 December 2011
20114£12H31H
RMB’000
ANR#Tu
Bl & A% MARITAE 503,997
SRATREK 0
%
MEEE R 479.7
EEAMLR 0.9
D EVH
H #
TR R 238.0
T35 R SR TR S i A 37.8
S R AR ] 81.1

31 December 2010
20104F12 A 31 H
RMB’000
NG5 T

161,409
0

%
236.9
34

Days
H %

206.1
41.1
99.7
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
Eslis e

“Capture market opportunities and focus on

mid-to-premium footwear market.”

[AME TR R P R R E S o

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “year under review”) to

our shareholders.

In 2011, the global economy experienced volatile swings and tittered on
the brink of recession as the impact of the sovereignty debt crisis in Europe
and the downgrade of the US’ credit rating dampened the global economic
outlook. The restrictive policies imposed by the Mainland Government to
combat inflationary pressures also resulted in a slowdown in the growth of

China’s retail sector.

While this slowdown did have some effect on the Group’s performance,
especially during the fourth quarter, the Group is still extremely well
positioned to capture China’s transition to a consumption-led economy,

particularly the rapidly-growing market for middle-to-high end footwear.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded total revenue
from continuing operations of RMB2,043.7 million, representing a growth
of 29.8% over the same period last year. Profit attributable to owners of the
company amounted to RMB290.2 million, representing an increase of 70.8%
over the same period last year, achieving remarkable results and generating

satisfactory returns for the shareholders.

ANACKRE FEIR B AR EANFHE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESiAEn

We remained focused throughout the year on expanding our network of
proprietary retail stores, as well as third-party outlets, in order to maintain
and expand our leading position as one of the largest retailers of mid-to-
premium women’s footwear in China. With effective expansion, the Group
increased a net 339 proprietary outlets during the year, operating a total of
1,311 proprietary outlets as of 31 December 2011, while adding an additional
120 third-party outlets to a total of 437 for the year. The Group operated a
total of 1,748 stores as of 31 December 2011. Our self-developed C.banner
and EBLAN brands continued to lead this expansion, with our products
now available in over 31 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions
across China. To further increase our distribution in China’s rapidly-growing
footwear market, the Group introduced two new footwear brands, FABIOLA
and sundance, in 2011. The uptake for both these brands has been strong in
which the Group is already operating 97 sundance self-owned stores as of the
end of the year, despite the brand having only been launched in August 2011.
FABIOLA, which targets China’s high-end footwear market, is now available

in some of the Group’s C.banner retail outlets.

In the coming year, the Group will focus on brand building, expand existing
sales channels, develop new internet sales channels and capacity expansions
in order to maintain the Group’s growth momentum and create long-term

value for shareholders.

To facilitate these expansion plans, the Group has been successfully listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (The “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) in September 2011. With the provision of sufficient
capital, the listing has built a strong base of enthusiastic international
investors keen to tap one of the world’s fastest growing consumer markets.
The listing has also succeeded in introducing our retail brands, particularly

C.banner, to a global investor base.

As part of these efforts, the name of the Company has been changed to
C.banner International Holdings Limited with effect from 8 February 2012.

R FRAMAE R A R R B S R B A A
DL = BB Gl DAAERS R R AR PR
Hh A Lo R R R W 2 — N RE A
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Looking forward, the Group expects the shift of China’s economic growth
from exports and investment to domestic demand will continue to provide
an excellent environment for the Group, especially as inflationary pressures
ease along with the Government’s containment policies. At the same time,
the Group will continue to pay close attention to short-term domestic
and international uncertainties and will adjust the Group’s strategies and

operations as required.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere thanks to our
management, staff and business partners for their dedication and unwavering
support during this landmark year for the Group. I would also like to thank
our shareholders for placing their trust in us during our first year as a listed
company of the Group. Leveraging on the experienced management team,
the Group will strive to further develop in new business streams in the

coming year, creating larger returns for our shareholders.

CHEN Yixi

Chairman

PRC, 22 March 2012

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
Eslis e

JEEG A > A e B TR o AR Rl 1
BUE MR B AR - AR S A SR PR
AVE TR > R3O Bt B
B ARBORAZ 5 AT 5% o BLULIR]IHF - AR FHY
R ) BRI B AN A TR R - S o
Jve SR S AR o

AN RERGEEIE - 8T REFEMT
SLFLA A B B4R O At 2 BT B R R
SCRFE LA G o BLAh o A TR A AR
SR B A b A R E AR B R B (R AR —
SR o R AR S P K > ARSR I
JITRE » TR ARA — A3 — 40 B HORT SE B S - 5
SR PR AR A B BB (o]

IEE

B i R

Blize 1
E

FEY s 201243 A 22 H



,12,

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HEHE RS

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the

“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

REORGANIZATION AND GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 26 April 2002 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(the “Companies Act”). The Company underwent a reorganization in
preparation for the listing of its shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Details of the reorganization are set out in the section
headed “Reorganization” in the Company’s prospectus dated 12 September
2011 (the “Prospectus”). The Company’s shares were listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 23 September 2011.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders on 1 February
2012, the name of the Company was changed from “Hongguo International
Holdings Limited” to “C.banner International Holdings Limited” and has
adopted the Chinese name of “~ F1 i [l [ 4% i A B2\ F]” as the secondary
name of the Company in place of “¥2 [ B4 47 i 22 7] which was used

for identification purpose only.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 55 of this

annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
The Board has declared a final dividend of RMBO0.043 per share for the year

ended 31 December 2011. Subject to the approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be payable on or
around end of July 2012 to the shareholders of the Company whose name

appear on the register of members of the Company as on 26 June 2012.

TIOR8 o 2 ) A w) B L A
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[ @R
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 12 June 2012
to 15 June 2012, both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity
of the shareholders who are entitled to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 15 June 2012. All transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 11 June 2012.

The register of members of the Company will also be closed from 21
June 2012 to 26 June 2012, both days inclusive, in order to determine
the entitlement of the shareholders to the final dividend. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on 20 June 2012.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting underwriting fees and
related expenses) amounted to approximately RMB535.7 million, which
are intended to be applied in accordance with the allocation set out in
the Prospectus. As of the date of this report, the Company intends to use
approximately 40% of the net proceeds for expansion of the retail network,
approximately 25% for expansion and maintenance of the production
facilities as well as construction of offices and warehousing facilities,
approximately 20% for selective acquisition of footwear businesses,
approximately 10% for repayment of bank loan and approximately 5% for

expansion of the online sales through the internet.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 25.2% (2010: 34.0%) of the Group’s total purchases and the
Group’s largest supplier accounted for 9.3% (2010: 16.0%) of the Group’s

total purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s sale to its five largest
customers accounted for 11.7% (2010: 13.4%) of the Group’s total sale
and the Group’s largest customer accounted for 6.4% (2010: 5.5%) of the

Group’s total sale.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers during the year ended 31 December

2011.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 15 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and share options of the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 and note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately RMB569.2 million (as at 31 December 2010:
RMB177 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the period and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman)

Mr. Li Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Wei

Mr. Huo Li

Mr. Xu Tingyu (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Miao Bingwen

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (appointed on 26 August 2011)
Mr. Xu Chengming

Mr. Li Xindan

(appointed on 26 August 2011)
(appointed on 26 August 2011)
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In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Huo Li
and Mr. Miao Bingwen will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, had offered themselves for re-election as

Directors of the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 102(B) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Kwong
Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Xu Chengming and Mr. Li Xindan who were newly
appointed by the Board on 26 August 2011, will also retire from office and

had offered themselves for re-election as Directors of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group are

set out on pages 48 to 52 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be

independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTER OF APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of one year commencing from 26 August 2011. Each
of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year

commencing from 26 August 2011.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or at the end of the

year ended 31 December 2011.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year ended 31 December 2011.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management and

comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to eligible
employees, details of the scheme are set out in the section headed “Share

Option Scheme” below.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals

are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company, or
(ii1) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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HEHE WS

ERELRERITRABRRBG - H
I3 ot A B A Mt v 2 i B R T

BAE20114E12A31H > EHEARNF EEFT
BN B A ) S E AT (T B ) G 38 38
F B B A5 (T 76 %5 B B 0091 1) 55 XV FB) 1
ety ~ BRI B S MERS > HEA (1) 75 55 &)
BRI XV TR T B 8 43T JE H B AN 7] o 77
G 52 T I RE £ SR (BLFE AR IR R 5 S
A A7 TR Wk SCABE 55 ol A ORI 20 AT 1 A AT
AR BRI B (1) MR8 R 25 B B e 91565 352
WRROER I A A FIZETE B 0 e 1 7 A 22 SR
75 B(i) WRIE E T T A SRR RS
14 R S U] ([ AR ST R ) B0 A 8 W) B 7 vl
WA i AR 2 SR AR

Approximate

Total number of percentage of

shares/underlying interest in
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held the Company
B ket A AR 2 B i
PN il 2 2 BT R J A 48 % W& 3 b
Mr. Chen Yixi (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 731,770,000 36.59%
PR ZE Be e AR (k1) B2 1 P A (long position)
(R
Mr. Li Wei (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 400,180,000 20.01%
e (Mhak2) B2 1 P A (long position)
()
Mr. Miao Bingwen (Note 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 368,050,000 18.40%
B SCSEAE (M5E3) B2 1 P A (long position)
(R
Notes: FftsE -
1. Mr. Chen Yixi is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of High Score 1. W25 2 S 7 High Score Holdings Limited 4 45 2
Holdings Limited which holds 731,770,000 shares in the Company. BATIRA Z H A N - R A2 7] 731,770,000
Je ety o
2. Mr. Li Wei is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Media Value 2. ZeA# e J Media Value Holdings Limited 2 #5C
Holdings Limited which holds 400,180,000 shares in the Company. BATIRA Z Bt B N - R4 A2 7] 400,180,000
Je ety o
3. Mr. Miao Bingwen is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Sure 3. #BIW3CSE T Sure Manage Investments Limited

Manage Investments Limited which holds 368,050,000 shares in the Company.

EWMEBITIMAZ EREA N FFHALA
368,050,000 B A o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short position in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would be required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or otherwise notified to the Company and the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no time during the year
ended 31 December 2011 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

W ECpigg B Ah > i20114E12 H31H > #EF
AN B FEEATEN B MR AR A 7] S AT Ao
AV ] O 28 508 7 S B 56 XV ) 2
JReA5y ~ AH BRI 05y J fif 55 P A AR IR RS 25 A
RIS XV EF5R 7 I 8 WRIE N & A\ w Je A s Tk
LI Z MR BUR A > SRR R IR S e 5
352 FRIH T EAF 2 B e M N 2 R g Bk A o 5
AR A UE < I Z8 T 1 A W) I B s A8 i 2.
HE# BUR AT ©

SR ML oy B A v O E A

R A AE T B b > R E 2011 4F 12 A 31
FI L 47 8 AT AT B T ARE AT ] LA g B A 2 0 B 47
(B R O SCE AR 2% 1) B R % T 7 S el
A A MBS R 185 T4 ~ sk A AT
A BRER] 5 sAR 2 T B AT o] B Jog 2 WA AR
THAT AT 4> B A A5 25 1 1 e (B BRI 18T
L EATAT AT B VS A B A BRI R RO -

2 BB A Ty B HH B T 4y o i
i IR A
BAE20114F12A31H » FEHERFNEM - LT A
o (R AN T FEATBA BRI R B 5E
AHBARL Oy op > HEA AR 9 38 55 RO B AR 155 XV
RAE 2 S 343 FRAE T 0B AR ) RO R IR A
SRR RS 25 BN B 91 55 336 e ZE e B A W% Mk
SCHTRR A AR R M A RERR BOR A R

Approximate

Total number of percentage of

shares/underlying interest in
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company
IIEEY 2 G AR 2 ) B
ISR AR il g P R M 3 4 WEZIE 2 ke
High Score Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 731,770,000 36.59%
Hamdia A (long position)
(8
Media Value Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 400,180,000 20.01%
HafEa A (long position)
(#F8)
Sure Manage Investments Limited Beneficial owner 368,050,000 18.40%

A A

(long position)
()
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Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2011, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011 are set out in note 38 to the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. The Directors of the Company (including our
independent executive Directors) believe that the related party transactions
set out in the note 38 to the notes to the consolidated financial statements
are carried out in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial

terms.

During the year under review, save for the lease agreement between the
Group and Hongguo Industry Group Corporation which is an associate of
certain Directors of the Company, no other transaction listed in note 38 to
the notes to the consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The transaction under the above lease agreement is exempt
from the relevant reporting, annual review, announcement and independent

shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the period from the date of Listing to 31 December 2011, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company’s listed securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro

rata basis to existing shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING
As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Miao

Bingwen, High Score Holdings Limited, Media Value Holdings Limited
and Sure Manage Investments Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”) has
executed a deed of non-competition through which they have irrevocably and
unconditionally warranted and undertaken to the Company not to, directly
or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any
services to or otherwise be involved in any business in competition with or
likely to be in competition with the business of design, manufacture and sale
of footwear and other businesses as conducted by the Group; or take any
action which constitutes an interference with or a disruption to the business
activities of the Group including, but not limited to, solicitation of customers,

suppliers or personnel of the Group.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed to the Company of their
compliance with the deed of non-competition for disclosure in this annual

report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the ‘‘Share Option Scheme’’)
on 26 August 2011 which has become effective upon the Company’s Listing
on 23 September 2011.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going business relationship with the eligible persons whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group;
and to motivate the eligible persons to optimize their performance efficiency

for the benefit of the Group.

Since the effective date of the Share Option Scheme, no share options had
been granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme during the year under review and there was no outstanding share

option under the Share Option Scheme.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 41 to the audited

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditors the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group

and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
Appendix 10 — Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers under the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of
all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied
with such code of conduct during the period from the date of Listing to 31
December 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 40 to 47 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public at all times during the period from the date of
Listing to 31 December 2011.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has acted as auditors of the Company for the year

ended 31 December 2011.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu shall retire in the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chen Yixi

Chairman

PRC, 22 March 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B HRE el S A

| £V v 74

THE GROUP'S SELE-DEVELOPED BRANDS ARE
C.BANNER AND EBLAN. IN THE FIRST HALF OF
2011, THE GROUP'S ANOTHER SELE-DEVELOPED

BRAND FABIOLA WAS AVAILABLE IN SOME OF THE
GROUP'S PROPRIETARY C.BANNER STORES AND SELF-
DEVELOPED BRAND SUNDANCE WAS LANUCHED
IN AUGUST 2011. THE GROUP ALSO SELLS WOMEN
FOOTWEAR THROUGH A LICENSED BRAND CALLED
NATURALIZER.

R B R T R R 1E 2010 AR B AEAERA [ T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PR R 2 A

C.banner s

“C.banner” is our first self-developed brand. “C.banner” is positioned to provide middle-to-high

end fashion, business and business casual women footwear.

[T E ] ZTAM A7 BB — 8T o
[T ] AR R B b MR AR 1~ 5 B 5 PR ) 2 ¥

C.BANNER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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C7EBLAN s

EBLAN, our second self-developed brand, is comparatively more youthful, colorful and

energetic in its designs.

FAM B A7 B EE0EE —AR bR [ AP0E ) R AR - SRR - HHEIE ) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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o

7RO

We launched our third self-developed brand. FABIOLA offers a range of premium fashion,

business and business casual footwear especially for ladies.

FRAM e 1958 = B A7 B EE A
[YEBRAN ) S5 Lo MR — RO R s 14~ S e s AR ] B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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sundance

e

The casual style of “sundance” is a perfect match with young ladies.

[RBE ] AMBE SRR > FF S FREF RS -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI R

s naturalizer

Our licensed brand “naturalizer” is one of the renowned brands of comfort casual footwear in the

US. Brown Shoe, the brand licensor, has granted us the sale franchise in China.

FRAP P2 R TIOR8 | 2 I N 24 () P B AR Pl Ak iy 2 — o
H 5 A A Brown Shoe B 5% T 482 w) H: b Bl 55 FP 4828 hiLEE o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI R

Expand our sales network and optimize brand portfolio

R B B s

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group primarily focuses on the design, production and sales of mid-to-
premium women footwear in China. According to the Euromonitor Report,
the Group was the second largest retailer of mid-to-premium formal and
casual women shoes in China in terms of the estimated retail sales for the
year ended 31 December 2010. The Group’s self-developed brands and
licensed brands products are mainly distributed through the department store
outlets in first-to-third-tier cities in China. The Group also wholesales its

self-developed brand products to authorised distributors.

Furthermore, the Group also acts as the OEM or ODM manufacturer for
international footwear companies in overseas export markets. The Group has
established a vertically integrated business model which includes the design
and development, sourcing, manufacturing, marketing, and wholesaling and

retailing of footwear.

The Group’s self-developed brands are C.banner, EBLAN, FABIOLA and
sundance. The Group also sells women footwear through a licensed brand

called naturalizer.

E 02 R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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proprietary outlets and
XABEEES

iy 1 ,3 |

4 3 7 third-party outlets across China
Gl FH =TI T

0-20 outlets ZH 5
20-40 outlets Z % 1
40-60 outlets Z &5 1l

60-200 outlets =5 1l

200+ outlets Z 455 [l

During the year under review, the Group has sought to maximize shareholder

value through the following initiatives:

Expanding retail and distribution networks and same-store sales growth
The Group continued to open more proprietary retail outlets in department
stores and expand its wholesale network in 2011 in order to maximize
revenue and market share, as well as further infiltrate its reach among

China’s growing number of mid-to-upper-class consumers.

The Group also focused on increasing same-store sales growth throughout
the year under review, in order to provide shareholders with maximum
returns on the Group’s current assets. During the year under review, the
Group achieved same-store sales growth of 14.6%, as it sought to improve
customer experience by refurbishing and improving the layout of stores.
The Group also continued to promote its VIP program attached to its self-
developed footwear brands in order to encourage repeat purchases and

improve customer loyalty.

In 2011, the Group opened 339 proprietary retail outlets and 120 third-party
outlets and continued to maintain a strong presence in over 31 provinces,

municipalities and autonomous regions across China.

gﬁ

=
A’iﬁ '

T [ AR BE > AR 2 o DA T 7 B R 4 R
R 2 e

PR T4 B 4y 5 A8 4% DA B I s Il Le 81 65 A0 IR
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B E o MUSOE— AT AR H R
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FAMER - WK AE AT [ BUA B 7 b B AT 2
S5 B o A [ AR BE > AR 4 2 T i [R] BE
RN 14.6% » TR 25 A B9 0 0 il Sk
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C.BANNER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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The following table shows the geographic distribution of proprietary and

B o BT

N REUR A B G BRSO R s 2

third-party outlets: [ g3 A
C.banner EBLAN naturalizer sundance
TEE ek S T
Proprietary Third-party Proprietary Third-party Proprietary Proprietary Third-party
Distribution outlets outlets outlets outlets outlets outlets outlets
Regions HEZHE 827  AEERE B=H  BEZRE BAEZRE B=T5 Total
3 B R R B MR FHEIEM W5 il R FEE At
Northeast HALH [ 85 24 62 23 9 20 - 223
Beijing byl 40 10 15 6 3 2 - 76
Tianjin R [ 70 75 43 25 11 16 - 240
Northwest [l ;112 56 55 36 18 2 6 - 173
Central China e oy [ 44 27 20 8 1 10 1 111
Eastern China HEF [ 130 46 100 27 19 23 1 346
Zhejiang WL 72 19 38 - 12 5 - 146
Shanghai g A [ 56 - 24 - 5 2 - 87
Southwest [yeapil 86 26 34 6 1 7 1 161
Southern China He R Hb 96 29 40 9 4 6 1 185
Total Mgt 735 311 412 122 67 97 4 1,748
Notes: BFGE
(1) Northeast region includes Jilin province, Liaoning province and Heilongjiang (1) FRAGHb [ AT 6 bR~ RS KOBHETLA
province;
) Beijing region includes Beijing, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Zhangjiakou 2) e ntHh AL FE AL st R M5 BRI ~ L& A5R
city and Qinhuangdao city in Hebei province; FHREE T
(3)  Tianjin region includes Tianjin, Shandong province and Hebei province (except  (3) R I G5 R~ (LA Kb (L&
Zhangjiakou city and Qinhuangdao city); SRE DT LR B ETRRAM
4) Northwest region includes Shanxi province, Shaanxi province, Qinghai province, 4) Pt B aE IS - RS - s Wl
Gansu province, Henan province, Xinjiang Autonomous Region and Ningxia B MY OREEER AR
Autonomous Region;
(5) Central China region includes Hunan province and Hubei province; (%) e bl L5 I B A L
(6)  Eastern China region includes Jiangsu province (except Wuxi city and Suzhou city), ~ (6)  FEAUMLE CLIGVLHRE (B85 1T B @R M T BRAD) ~ %2
Anhui province and Jiangxi province; A BT E
7) Zhejiang region includes Zhejiang province and Wuxi city and Suzhou city in Jiangsu ©] L [ 64 WL 8 DL TR 0 685 T B R
province; i s
(8) Shanghai region includes Shanghai; (8) b A
9) Southwest region includes Sichuan province, Guizhou province, Yunnan province, )] Farg AR DY) - ENE - ErE - EEE
Chonggqing city and Tibet Autonomous Region; and RPqm A6 K&
(10)  Southern China region includes Guangdong province, Hainan province, Guangxi (10)  FEFFHL WG R A ~ BRA - BT AR R

Autonomous Region and Fujian province.

EH e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Introduction of new brands

The Group introduced two new brands in 2011 in order to diversify its
product offering, expand its reach to new markets and broaden its customer
base. In the first half of the year, the Group has launched FABIOLA, a range
of premium fashion, business and business casual footwear. Retailing at
between RMB1,000 and RMB3,000 per pair, the range targets women aged
between 25 and 39 and are now available in some of the Group’s proprietary

C.banner stores.

sundance, a new range of mid-to-high-end casual footwear targeting women
aged 18 to 35, was launched in August 2011. Shoes from this line retail from
RMB400 to RMB2,200 per pair and are sold through their own retail outlets.
Despite only operating during the last few months of the year, sundance has
already elicited an extremely positive response from consumers, especially
following the engagement of popular Chinese songstress Shang Wenjie
(" %2 1) to act as the brand’s ambassador. The Group operated 97 sundance

self-owned stores as of 31 December 2011.

Research and design capabilities

The Group maintains a research and development centre in Foshan,
Guangdong province, which employed 217 employees as of 31 December
2011. Each of our self-developed brands (C.banner, EBLAN, FABIOLA
and sundance) have their own specialised team of brand directors, design
managers and designers, ensuring that each brand maintains its own

distinctive look and character.

The Group continued to upgrade the capabilities of its design teams
throughout the year, by providing design training, as well as organising field
studies in the domestic and international fashion markets, in order to keep
designers abreast of the latest fashion trends and developments. This has
enabled the Group to continue providing popular and distinctive footwear

and maintain its strong position in the Chinese retail market.

Effective cost-control through efficient and responsive business
operations

The Group’s vertically integrated business model equipped the Group with
prompt response to the fast-changing market trends and consumer tastes,
while ensuring that the sourcing and manufacturing of goods are conducted

in the most efficient and cost-effective way.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Under this operational structure, the design and production teams of the
Group worked together to develop products which are economical to
produce, but do not sacrifice their appeal to China’s fashion-conscious
consumers. These teams also collaborate closely with the Group’s marketing
and sales teams to ensure that an appropriate amount of each product is
produced to meet specific demand in each region, allowing the Group to
minimise waste, achieve cost control and maintain its profitability during the

year under review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s total revenue from
continuing operations rose 29.8% to RMB2,043.7 million compared to the
same period of last year. Operating profit rose 69.1% to RMB405.4 million
in the period under review. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased 70.8% to RMB290.2 million compared to the same period of last

year.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s total revenue from
continuing operations rose 29.8% to RMB2,043.7 million, compared to
RMB1,575.0 million in the same period of last year. The growth in revenue
was attributable to the Group’s aggressive retail outlet expansion strategy
and increase in same-store sales. The Group added a net 339 proprietary
outlets during the year, operating a total of 1,311 proprietary outlets as of
31 December 2011, while adding an additional 120 third-party outlets to a
total of 437 for the year. The Group operated a total of 1,748 stores as of 31
December 2011.

The Group’s revenue mix includes income from the retail and wholesale

operations and contract manufacturing. Revenue distribution is as follows:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Profitability

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s gross profit from
continuing operations rose 33.5% to RMB1,298.3 million, an increase of
RMB326.0 million compared to RMB972.3 million last year. As of 31
December 2011, the gross profit margin from continuing operations was
63.5%, an increase of 1.8 percentage points from 61.7% in the corresponding
period of last year. The growth in gross profit was attributable to a stronger
contribution from the retail and wholesaling of high-end shoes and effective
cost control. Contribution from retail and wholesaling increased to 88.5% of
overall revenue as of 31 December 2011, compared to 86.8% in 2010, while
the percentage of contract manufacturing to total revenue declined to 11.5%

compared to 13.2% in 2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, distribution and selling expenses
for continuing operations reached RMB817.8 million, an increase of 25.2%
compared to expenses of RMB653.0 million last year. Distribution and
selling expenses mainly consisted of concessionaire fees, rental expenses,
salaries and commissions of salespersons, renovation expenses for self-
owned retail stores, advertising and marketing expenses. Distribution and
selling expenses was equivalent to around 40.0% of total revenue, compared

to 41.5% in the corresponding period of last year.

Administrative and general expenses for continuing operations over the
year reached RMB74.4 million, a decrease of RMB10.4 million compared
to the same period of last year. Administrative and general expenses mainly
consisted of salaries and benefits for management and executives, rental
payment for office premises, depreciation of office equipment and other
related administrative expenses. Administrative and general expenses were
equivalent to 3.6% of total revenue, compared to 5.4% in the same period of
last year (which also included a one-off payment of a RMB7.5 million option

fee).

Other income and expenses and other gains and losses from continuing
operations over the year was a net of RMB2.9 million, a decline of RMB6.2
million compared to the same period of last year. This was mainly attributed
to listing fees of RMB27.8 million that was only partially offset by RMB22.1

million increase in government subsidies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs for continuing operations over the year were RMB1.6 million,
which were interest expenses from a USD9.8 million loan made on 9 March
2011 and repaid in September 2011. The RMB903,000 in finance costs
incurred by the Group in 2010 included a RMB400,000 interest expense for a
USD6.0 million loans repaid on 23 April 2010, and RMB500,000 in expenses

for setting up Renminbi credit facilities.

Income tax expense for continuing operations over the year increased by
RMB47.6 million or 70.4% to RMB115.2 million, compared to an expense
of RMB67.6 million last year. The Group’s effective income tax rate of
continuing operations in 2011 was 28.4%, an increase of 0.2 percentage
points compared to an effective tax rate of 28.2% last year. The increase was
attributed to the one-off costs associated with the Company’s listing in Hong

Kong which is not tax deductible in China.

Profit attributable to owners of the company rose 70.8% to RMB290.2
million, an increase of RMB120.3 million compared to a profit of RMB169.9
million last year. Excluding the one-off option expense payment of RMB7.5
million in the administrative and general expenses during the first half of

2010, the actual growth rate was 63.6%.

Liquid Assets, Financial Resources and Capital Expenditure
As of 31 December 2011, the Group had bank balances and cash of
RMB504.0 million, compared to RMB161.4 million at the end of last year.

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB34.2 million, a
decrease of RMB75.1 million compared to RMB109.3 million as of the end
of last year. This fall is primarily attributed to an increase in inventory caused
by establishing 339 new proprietary stores in 2011. The Group’s new brand,
sundance, which was launched in August, also contributed to the increase in
inventory. The Group’s inventory rose 36.9% from RMB410.3 million as at
31 December 2010 to RMB561.8 million as at 31 December 2011.
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The Group recorded a net cash outflow of RMB162.9 million from
investing activities, compared to a net inflow of RMB6.2 million for the
same period of last year. The outflow primarily consisted of the purchase
of premises, factories, equipment of RMB39.4 million, capital injection of
RMB2.4 million to a joint venture and other short-term principal guaranteed
investments of RMB142.6 million. The net outflow was partially offset by an
interest income of RMB2.7 million and the maturity of RMB19.2 million in

pledged bank deposits.

Net cash inflow from financing activities was RMB471.2 million, which
mainly consisted of net proceeds of RMB564.8 million from the listing of
the Company’s shares, which was partially offset by share issuance expense
of RMB29.1 million and dividend payments of RMB64.4 million. The net
outflow from financing activities in 2010 was RMB232 million, which
consisted of a repayment for short-term bank loans of RMB40.9 million and

dividend payments of RMB191.6 million.

As of 31 December 2011, the net current assets of the Group were
RMB1,206.2 million, compared to RMB476.1 million at the end of last year,
an increase of 153.4% or RMB730.1 million.

Pledge of Asset
As of 31 December 2011, the Group’s pledged bank deposit was RMB14.6
million, compared to RMB33.8 million at the end of the previous year. The

decrease is attributed to a decline in the amount of notes payable.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any substantial or contingent liabilities as of 31

December 2011.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s sales were mainly denominated in RMB, while transactions
related to its contract manufacturing business was denominated in USD. As
the contract manufacturing business accounted for only 11.5% of total sales
as of 31 December 2011, the Board of Directors does not foresee exchange
rate fluctuation as having a substantial impact on the Group’s business.
However, the Board will closely monitor the effects of exchange rates on the
contract manufacturing business and mitigate the impact. For the year ended
31 December 2011, the Group recorded a RMB167,000 gain from currency
exchange, compared to a RMB268,000 gain in the corresponding period of
last year. The Group did not hold any derivative instruments for hedging

against foreign exchange risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures for the whole year of 2011 were RMB40.2 million
which was primarily related to the Group’s investment activities. Payments
for the acquisition of property, plants and equipment accounted for RMB39.4

million and payments for intangible assets accounted for RMBO0.8 million.

Human Resources

As of 31 December 2011, the Group had 10,624 employees (31 December
2010: 8,886 employees). The Group provides its employees with competitive
remuneration packages including mandatory pension funds, insurance
and medical benefits. In addition, the Group pays discretionary bonuses
to qualified employees according to the business performance and their

individual work performance.

Use of Proceeds

Following the listing of the Company on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 23 September 2011 by issuing 300 million new shares
under an offer price of HK$2.3, total funds raised after deducting the
underwriting commission was about RMB535.7 million. The application
of the proceeds from the initial public offering by the Group followed
the guidance as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated

12 September 2011. Proceeds were used as follows:
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Dividend
The Board of Directors of the Company has declared a final dividend of
RMBO0.043 per share for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Subject to the approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, the final dividend will be payable on or around end of July 2012
to the shareholders of the Company whose name appear on the register of

members of the Company as on 26 June 2012.
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Generate brand recognition and expand our market share
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Outlook

Looking forward, the Group will continue in expanding its market share in
the retailing of mid-to-premium lady footwear market in China by promoting
a multi-brand strategy that focuses on the development of new brands, either
through its own development or cooperation with other footwear retailers.
By unique positioning of each brand and applying innovative promotional
efforts, the Company intends to shape each brand’s ‘core DNA’ to create
value, enhance product mix and meet consumer demand across a wide range

of market segments.

The Group will also continue to maintain growth by further expanding its
retail outlets, with a goal of opening approximately 200 to 300 proprietary
outlets and approximately 100 third-party outlets in 2012, as well as by
increasing sales volume at each store. The Group will also exercise strict

control over inventories in order to further improve inventory turnover.

The Group also plans to work with third-party providers to create an online
platform to sell its products, allowing the Group to further increase inventory

turnover and further create new streams of revenue.

To facilitate the continuously expanding retail network, the Group will
further increase manufacturing capacity for its self-made brands by adding an
additional 4 production lines to its Nanjing, Dongguan and Suining factories,
to reach a total of 16 production lines by the end of 2012. This will increase

the Group’s manufacturing capacity to approximately 7.2 million pairs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group will maintain the current scale of production for its OEM
operations in the coming year, while improving profitability by increasing
the proportion of high-end brands and through technology improvements.
The Group will also continue to leverage on the OEM of international brands

to further improve its expertise and the quality of its own brands.

With the aim of boosting profile of the Group’s signature C.banner brand
and building up the Company’s recognition as one of China’s largest
shoe retailers, the name of the Company has been changed to C.banner
International Holdings Limited with T 7 JEH BB A BR/A ] as the
secondary name with effect from 8 February 2012.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to seize opportunities to grow
its business through selective acquisitions or cooperation with other
footwear retailers, and aggressively expanding its presence in China in
order to continue providing customers with high quality footwear and bring

satisfactory returns to shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
R

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the

annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The Company
has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout
the period from 23 September 2011 (the “Listing Date”) to 31 December
2011 (the “Review Period”). The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG

Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, overseeing
the Group’s strategic decisions and monitoring the Group’s business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees including the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their

respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the

Company and its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen
Yixi, Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Zhao Wei, Mr. Huo Li and Mr. Xu Tingyu, one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Miao Bingwen and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu Chengming, Mr. Li Xindan and Mr.
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson. The biographies of the Directors are set out under

the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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During the Review Period, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence

guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals. During the Review Period, Mr. Chen Yixi was the chairman and
Mr. Li Wei was the chief executive officer. Mr. Chen Yixi is responsible
for charting the business strategy and has played a determining role in
establishing the Group’s presence in the PRC women’s footwear industry.
Mr. Li Wei is responsible for overseeing the operations (including brand
and product development), finance and human resource management of
the Group. As described above, there is a clear distinction between the
chairman’s responsibility for providing leadership for the Board and the chief
executive officer’s responsibility for managing the day-to-day operations of

the Group’s business.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of one year commencing from 26 August 2011,
which is terminable by not less than three months’ written notice served by
either party on the other and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation of the Directors as set out in the Bye-

laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).
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Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
one year commencing on 26 August 2011, which is terminable by the
Company by serving not less than one month’s written notice and is subject
to termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of

the Directors as set out in the Bye-laws.

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Furthermore, pursuant to the bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
member is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-third
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation. The retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at any general

meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated offices.

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment. By virtue of
the bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws, the Board shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board but so that the number of Directors
so appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general

meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Bye-laws. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the

appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors.

Induction and Continuing Development of Directors

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the

Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
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Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Briefing and professional development for Directors will be

arranged where necessary.

Board Meetings

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly, at
least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of
not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to provide
all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the

meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the

meeting is held.

For the Review Period, one board meeting was held and the attendance of the

individual Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Chen Yixi 1/1
Mr. Li Wei 1/1
Mr. Zhao Wei 1/1
Mr. Huo Li 1/1
Mr. Xu Tingyu 1/1
Mr. Miao Bingwen 1/1
Mr. Xu Chengming 1/1
Mr. Li Xindan 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and each
of the Directors has confirmed that he has complied with the Model Code

throughout the Review Period.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s

senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by

the management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 26 August 2011 with terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code. During the
Review Period, the Audit Committee comprised all the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Xu
Chengming and Mr. Li Xindan. Mr. Miao Bingwen, the non-executive
Director of the Company, has been appointed as an additional member of
the Audit Committee with effect from 22 March 2012. Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson currently is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The main duties of

the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the internal audit division or

external auditors before submission to the Board

. To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system

and associated procedures
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During the Review Period, one meeting of the Audit Committee was held and

the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out in the table

below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1
Mr. Xu Chengming 1/1
Mr. Li Xindan 1/1

The Audit Committee held one meeting during the Review Period to review
the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the six months
ended 30 June 2011, the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems and processes, and

the re-appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 26 August 2011 with
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. During the Review
Period, the Remuneration Committee comprised four members, namely Mr.
Xu Tingyu, Mr. Xu Chengming, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson and Mr. Li
Xindan, the majority of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Xu Tingyu was the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. To comply
with the amendments to the Listing Rules which became effective on 1 April
2012, Mr. Li Xindan has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee in place of Mr. Xu Tingyu who has also ceased to be a member of
the Remuneration Committee, with effect from 22 March 2012. In addition,
Mr. Miao Bingwen has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration

Committee with effect from 22 March 2012.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for formulating such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will
be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the

Company as well as market practice and conditions.

No meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the Review

Period.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 26 August 2011 with terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. During the Review Period, the
Nomination Committee comprised four members, namely Mr. Huo Li, Mr.
Xu Chengming, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson and Mr. Li Xindan, the majority
of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Huo Li was the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. To comply with the amendments to
the Listing Rules which became effective on 1 April 2012, Mr. Chen Yixi has
been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee in place of Mr.
Huo Li who has also ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee,

with effect from 22 March 2012.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

. To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make

recommendations regarding any proposed changes
. To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors

. To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-

appointment of and succession planning for Directors
. To assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors

No meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the Review

Period.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 which give a true
and fair view of the affairs of the Group and of the Group’s results and cash

flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the

Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for

maintaining an adequate internal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and Company assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such

system on an annual basis.
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The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal control
of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all branches and

subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and considered the internal control system to be

effective and adequate during the Review Period.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Annual audit fees of the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011 payable to the external auditors are approximately
RMBI1.8 million. The Company incurred approximately RMB4.5 million
for services provided by external auditors in connection with the Initial
Public Offering of the Company’s shares in 2011. In addition, approximately

RMBO0.5 million was incurred for other non-audit services.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the Group’s
business, performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the informed investment

decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbanner.com.cn, where up-to-date information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each issue at shareholder meetings, including the election of

individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in a timely manner after

each shareholder meeting.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Chen Yixi (BZ2B8), aged 45, is the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Chen founded Nanjing Mayflower Footwear Corporation
(PR EEHEHZEAIRA A (“Mayflower Footwear”) in 1995 and is a co-
founder of the Group. Mr. Chen is responsible for charting the business
strategy of the Group and has played a determining role in establishing the
Group’s presence in the PRC women’s footwear industry. Mr. Chen was
honored by the People’s Government of Jiangsu Province and the People’s
Government of Nanjing as an Outstanding Entrepreneur of Non-State-
owned Companies (87 R % %) and is currently the Vice Chairman
of Nanjing Federation of Industry & Commerce (Fd %% L /i 2£ 56 & @)
and Vice President of Nanjing Enterprise Directors Association (R & i
R W E). Mr. Chen graduated from Nanjing Normal University with
a Bachelor’s Degree in News Propagation in 1988 and obtained a Master
of Business Administration Degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business in 2007. He served with the news publications department of
Jiangsu Chinese Communist Party Council from 1988 to 1995 before co-
founding Mayflower Footwear with other partners. Apart from being a
director of the Board when the Group was listed on SGX-ST, Mr. Chen has
not been a director of any other listed company in the three years immediately

preceding the date of this annual report.

Li Wei (ZE1#), aged 45, is the Chief Executive Officer, the President and an
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li founded Mayflower Footwear
in 1995 and is a co-founder of the Group. He has served as a director of the
Group since 1995 and is responsible for overseeing the operations (including
brand and product development), finance and human resource management
of the Group. Mr. Li has over 15 years of experience in the PRC footwear
industry. Much of the Group’s success, in particular, building up brand
recognition of the Group’s first brand “F H > (“Qianbaidu” in Chinese
pinyin) in a few years since its introduction into the market in 1996 and the
Group’s ability to maintain its market leading position, are attributable to
Mr. Li’s extensive operational experience in the footwear industry. Mr. Li
graduated from Nanjing University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemistry in
1989 and obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree
from China Europe International Business School in 2008. Mr. Li was the
manager of the sales department of Zhenjiang Libao Footwear Co., Ltd. (8%
YL B 2 A BR/A 1) before co-founding Mayflower Footwear with other
partners. Apart from being a director of the Board when the Group was listed
on SGX-ST, Mr. Li has not been a director of any other listed company in the

three years immediately preceding the date of this annual report.

HE

WiHEF

BEZEIE - 455 » AN R EF RITES -
Bl 5 A2 7 1995 47 81l 57 f ¢ 96 BB EZE AT IR )
([ERHFRZE]) - RAEEMAMAZ — > &
T RT AR A [ S S - A A A I ST R T B
SRR A RAC T o BOTAEAETIRRE AN REUN K
T AN RBUG R0 S R R - BURHE
AT T T S S T A 2K e
TR o BRACAH A 1988 4F 53 A T T Fifi i O 2
A mr AR 2 B > SR A 20074F R TT
B IS T PR LR o BLHAL A AT
B R % I He Bk SE T - AR 1988 4F & 1995 4F
AR e B L P VTR 2 B A BT o BR
i S T A S0 O 5 2 48 5 I b i R AP A 2
A 5 BRSEAE AR B R = 4R RN AT AT
] Hofth T A FIES -

Zefl 5 4SHE > BN ERATE - MRS
TTIET o 2250 b 1995 4 Fl 37 BB ERESE
Ry AR SEEAIHEN Z — o B H 1995 4E IR —H
AR E S AT B AR AR O (L
J RS S B )~ WA RN B R - 22
A A 15 A R B R 2 A o AR 2K
B RHE M TEE] (PEPEE A
[Qianbaidul) [ 1996 4 ¥ A i 15 LA A #UAF [
FEAS ST RN 4% B > DA S AR B I RE A AR F5 T
ST o THERH A 2R S M R R A AR
B o Z5E RN 1989 4F S 2R p U KB - FEAL
ELEL- BT 5 S Y 2008 4 A R B[4S 7 £
HUARATBON B 0% 8 A B o B AL %
U B 55 B B 2R 0 - RS e S TSR
ST EESEAT FR AN FIACH o BT AR A I ST s
FEHAL G T E MRS T IS - R A4
i B AT = A I S AT AT o] Ho At b )
Ho



—49-

Zhao Wei (#if#), aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company in 2004. Mr. Zhao is also the Vice President and is responsible
for the Group’s expansion strategies and wholesale. Mr. Zhao joined the
Group in December 1995 as a sales manager. Mr. Zhao graduated from Jilin
Agricultural University majoring in fishery science in 1990. He also obtained
a Master of Business Administration Degree from Singapore Nanyang
Technological University in 2008. Apart from being a director of the Board
when the Group was listed on SGX-ST, Mr. Zhao has not been a director of
any other listed company in the three years immediately preceding the date

of this annual report.

Huo Li (7)), aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company in 2001 and has been the Vice President and chief supervisor since
2008 for the Group’s International Investment Center, which is primarily
responsible for evaluating opportunities of, and formatting plans for, mergers
and acquisitions as well as international cooperation. Mr. Huo joined the
Group as an investment manager in 2001 and is responsible for the external
investments, international cooperation of the Group. In 1988, Mr. Huo
graduated from Fudan University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics.
From 1988 to 2001, he held various positions in the Bank of China, including
that of deputy general manager of the bank’s Changzhou Branch. Apart from
being a director of the Board when the Group was listed on SGX-ST, Mr.
Huo has not been a director of any other listed company in the three years

immediately preceding the date of this annual report.

Xu Tingyu (R JE#), aged 46, is an executive Director and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. He received a certificate of completion
in 2002 from Nanjing University after taking and passing the postgraduate
courses for advanced study in business management with a concentration
on financial accounting from September 2000 to June 2002 and is currently
a non-practicing member of the PRC Certified Public Accountants
Association. Mr. Xu began his career in the banking industry as a manager of
Bank of China, Jiangsu Branch, from 1987 to 1999. In 2000, he joined China
Orient Asset Management Company (“China Orient’) (3 /7 & /& 45 i\ 7))
as a senior supervisor of its Nanjing office. He was also assigned by China
Orient to act as the chief financial officer of Nanjing Jinning Electronics
Group Co., Ltd. (M2 &3 ET4EE A RAF]). In November 2002, Mr.
Xu joined the Group as the Chief Financial Officer of Mayflower (Nanjing)
Industries Limited and subsequently as the internal auditor of the Company.
Mr. Xu was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer and executive Director
of the Company on 1 April 2007 and 1 March 2008, respectively. Apart from
being a director of the Board when the Group was listed on SGX-ST, Mr.
Xu has not been a director of any other listed company in the three years

immediately preceding the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

I AR P

R 4SEK > R20044FERAT Sy AR A R HUATHE
F o MBI A BIARE > AT
P S m S LB FE o M SE AR A 19954F 12 H
AR > PEAT S B ARHE o f7A 19904 42 3570
TR RS - FEWERE - IR 20084F H
SO0 38 A B LA R A L A AR A
I 17 A 4 T8 2 T N30 38 5 58 5 T L Tl RE B AT o
A 5 A AR AR BT = A R A AT
AR R /A

B ASIHE > 2001 FHEBRAT BA N R ATHE
F o IR H 200845 2y A B2 ] ) 4R K A 4R 1
AR O B B B R I
I 4 P A B 2 A BT A o B SEAE A 2001
AR » WA A > AT WS
AN R A ARG o FESEAE Y 1988 4F B2
AR RREE > HEACTREL BN o FESEA R 1988
52001 4RI AT B ERAT ZARR AL - (045 5%
SRATH M AT B AEAE T o AR A S8 (8 B 3k
AT T E RS T R AN AR AR
R H AT AR AN AT A o] HoAth T R
Ho

WRIEM > 465K » Sy AN RIRIAT S 3 o TS A 75
B e A 2000 4F 9 H % 2002 4F 6 H i FE K8
YCEE LGS G T 2 2 B S A B BT e A
BT 50 A AR > R 2002 4P AR 45 363 - o
A AP B T G IEREE A o Rk
AR 19874E 19994 FE R H SRAT 3 - AT P B4R
TR AT R © AR JeA A 200048 A Ry &
FERFIIA T (TS 1) > AT Hom o e )
S o R INER T BT AE N EEET
A BRA R R E TE B E - 1R5E4E R 20024F
UL IAASERE > 5T 4R EE A2 (R ) A R
ONTEVIE R AR > HLAR AT AR T R R A S
fill o TR5EA A 200744 41 H % 200843 H 1 H
Iy NHEZAT Ry AR N A1 6 A S B AT g -
Wi 1 A B 18 2 30 DI 0k % 5 38 5 T b T RS AT
Fehb o BRI AR H AT AR R I AT
ATA A b AR e o



—50-

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
N R P

Non-executive Director

Miao Bingwen (M), aged 44, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Miao is a co-founder who served as an executive Director of
the Company from 1995 to 2007, overseeing the sales and business planning
of the Group. With effect from 1 March 2007, Mr. Miao was re-designated
as the non-executive Director. Mr. Miao obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in
Chemistry and a Master of Business Administration Degree from Nanjing
University in 1988 and 2005, respectively. He worked in Nanjing University
Technology Development Limited (Fg I K2R B #8220 F]) from 1988 to
1991 and served as the Nanjing market supervisor from 1991 to 1995, before
co-founding Mayflower Footwear with other partners. Apart from being a
director of the Board when the Group was listed on SGX-ST, Mr. Miao has
not been a director of any other listed company in the three years immediately

preceding the date of this annual report.

Pursuant to appointment letter dated 26 August 2011 between the Company
and Mr. Miao, Mr. Miao is not entitled to any remuneration. However, in
consideration of his services provided to the Company, a supplemental
appointment letter dated 23 February 2012 was entered into between the
Company and Mr. Miao, pursuant to which it was agreed that Mr. Miao shall
be entitled to a remuneration of HK$200,000 per year.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Xu Chengming (#F7& ), aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Xu is the vice president of Nanjing University
of Finance and Economics, primarily responsible for the undergraduate
teaching and international cooperation. In addition, Mr. Xu is currently
the Vice Chairman of China Society of Quantitative Economics ([}
AP G the executive director of China World Economy (2 {H
HLE85ELEr) and the vice president of Jiangsu Institute of International
Finance (VL& Bl B 4l 2 €r). Mr. Xu graduated from the Anhui Institute of
Education, currently known as Hefei Normal University, with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Mathematics in 1984 and from Shanghai Jiao Tong University
with a Master’s Degree in Mathematics in 1988. Mr. Xu further obtained
his Doctor’s Degree in Economics from Fudan University in 2001. Mr. Xu
started his career in Nanjing University of Finance and Economics in 1994
as the dean assistant of Investment Economics and Statistics department and
was promoted to the head officer of the Office of Academic Affairs in 1998,
the head of Banking and Finance Department in 2000 and the dean of the
School of Banking and Finance in 2003. Mr. Xu was an independent non-
executive director in Nanjing Redsun Co., Ltd. (Fg &AL KR B A FRA
F]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from 2006 to 2009.
Saved as disclosed above, Mr. Xu has not been a director of any other listed
company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this annual

report.
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Li Xindan (2.0 J}), aged 45, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Li currently holds several positions with Nanjing
University, including the dean and the Anzhong Chair Professor of the
School of Management Science and Engineering of Nanjing University, the
director of the Financial Engineering Research Center and the executive
director of the Venture Capital Research and Development Center of
the university. Mr. Li graduated from Fudan University in 1988 with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Management Science as well as a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics. He further obtained a Doctor’s Degree in Finance from Fudan
University in 1999. Mr. Li joined the Southeast University as an assistant
professor in 1988 and was promoted to an associate professor and a professor
in 1993 and 1999, respectively. Then Mr. Li joined Nanjing University
as a professor in 2001. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive
director in NARI Technology Development Limited Company ([ 7& 4 %y
B A R A, Jiangsu Holly Corporation (VLERGAZERLIG A FRA
F]) and Shanghai Lian Hua Fibre Corporation (- #5345 4k e A FR 2
F]). Within the past three years, he was also an independent non-executive
director in Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd. (VL& 7 &l & F} 4%
{3 E B2 7)) and Y.U.D. Yangtze River Investment Industry Co., Ltd. (&
BEEEIR VLG B PR 7)) until June 2010 and December 2010,
respectively. All the above companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li has not been a director of any
other listed company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this

annual report.

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (BFf&#{%), aged 46, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Kwong is the President of Gushan
Environmental Energy Limited, a leading biodiesel and related products
producer in China listed on the New York Stock Exchange, a position which
he has held since 2008 after joining the company in 2006. He is also an
independent non-executive director of China Outfitters Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Kwong graduated
from Cambridge University, England with a Degree of Bachelor of Arts
in 1987 and is currently an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretary.
Mr. Kwong, who previously worked at a number of investment banks in
Hong Kong, has 12 years of experience in corporate finance and equity
capital markets in Asia. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Kwong was the head of
equity capital markets for Cazenove Asia Limited. From 2004 to 2006, he
was a managing director of investment banking and head of Hong Kong and
China equity capital market of CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited. Saved
as disclosed above, Mr. Kwong has not been a director of any other listed
company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this annual

report.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wan Xianghua (3 #:3E), aged 43, is a Chief Executive Assistant of the
Group. Mr. Wan joined the Group as a manufacturing manager in 1996, and
is currently the Chief Executive Assistant as well as the General Manager of
the Group’s commodity center, responsible for the Group’s product research,
design and development and supply chain management. Mr. Wan has served
as a committee member of the National Technical Committee on Footwear
of Standardization Administration of China (" [ il $AZ #E{L 2% & &) since
2008 and has been a professor specializing in footwear manufacturing at

Guangling Institute of Yangzhou University (851 % [ 22 B ) since 2010.

Wu Weiming (5%4EW]), aged 40, is a Chief Executive Assistant of the
Group. Mr. Wu joined the Group in 2000, and is currently the Chief
Executive Assistant as well as the General Manager of the Group’s retail
management department, responsible for the retail operations of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu had served with Shenzhen Zhen Xing
Footwear Company (EIIZHLEEZE/NF]) since 1997 and was the general
manager of East China Branch of the company when he left the company in

2000.
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Deloitte
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF C.BANNER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.banner
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Hongguo International
Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 131, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standard Board and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T8 A B

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SRR R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
HBE 20114512 31 H 4R
2011 2010
20114 20104F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 51 AR¥F0 ANRHET T
Continuing operations FEHETS
Revenue I %5 6 2,043,696 1,574,963
Cost of sales PR A (745,435) (602,671)
Gross profit EA 1,298,261 972,292
Other income and expenses HoAb e A B2 K
and other gains and losses HoAth 2 1 B2 48 7 2,891 9,076
Distribution and selling expenses I3 B B BH S (817,803) (652,993)
Administrative and general expenses AT B — B 32 (74,350) (84,771)
Finance costs P A 8 (1,568) (903)
Share of losses of joint ventures S AE A R R 20 (2,054) (2,996)
Profit before tax o3 Bt i i ] 9 405,377 239,705
Income tax expense SIS B 5 10 (115,199) (67,643)
Net profit for the year EEESFE 73]
from continuing operations A RALF 290,178 172,062
Discontinued operations CRILED
Loss for the year CAC I EERH
from discontinued operations AN HH 11 = (2,207)
Net profit and total comprehensive EN/NCIE ZEPN/ I
income for the year attributable to AR IR AL K A T
owners of the Company A g 290,178 169,855
Earnings per share 13 B2 )
From continuing and PEESTE 379N
discontinued operations E# LTS
Basic (RMB cents) FA (NRH) 14 16.28 9.99
From continuing operations KB R ZERS

Basic (RMB cents) FHA (NEH) 14 16.28 10.12
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR A BRI R
AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
A 20114F12 A 31 H

2011 2010
2011 4 20104F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
By AR¥ T8 ANR#EFIC
Non-current assets IR B B
Property, plant and equipment W ~ F)7 B kA 15 109,899 86,277
Prepaid lease payments TS 4 16 15,302 15,686
Investment properties TEY 17 46,000 46,069
Intangible assets MY & 18 2,190 1,814
Interest in joint ventures A EAENRE S 20 6,994 5,804
Deferred tax assets PR ATl JH A 21 17,256 10,200
Long-term deposit =S E iy 9,464 7,197
207,105 173,047
Current assets B
Inventories PNty 22 561,840 410,263
Trade receivables 2 5 MEWCIR R 23 243,555 179,930
Other receivables and prepayments HAbESCRE MR 24 57,330 38,360
Available-for-sale investments A A B 25 75,611 -
Structured bank deposits SEHESRAT AR AR 26 67,000 -
Pledged bank deposits TSR TA7 3K 27 14,589 33,784
Bank balances and cash SRATH R S B 28 503,997 161,409
1,523,922 823,746
Current liabilities wWE A
Trade payables 2 5 EA R IE 29 133,947 197,161
Other payables A JRE A 30 114,446 95,471
Income tax liabilities IS £ £ 56,616 46,435
Deferred revenue TRIEWA 31 12,672 8,581
317,681 347,648
Net current assets Tt ) P VR (E 1,206,241 476,098
Total assets less current liabilities BT 2 D U B £ 1,413,346 649,145
Non-current liability Ik By £ 45
Deferred tax liabilities AL IH A i 21 9,836 7,059
1,403,510 642,086
Capital and reserves A ok Al
Share capital JiE & 32 202,087 49,271
Reserves bt 1,201,423 592,815
Total equity attributable to A TR A
owners of the Company R 1,403,510 642,086

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 131 were approved 5355 % 131 H M4 A MR R E F Gk 2012
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2012 and are ~ 4F3 H 22 H #LE K REEEATIC th LR A%

signed on its behalf by: B
Huo Li Xu Tingyu Bh REEM
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR W g
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SRa B R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 D[L[MB[R 201 1
BE20114F 1231 H (14
PRC Share
Share Share Statutory option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
i T T
oA Tt i e Rl ] Rt it

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTFE  AR¥TE  ARETT  ARWTT  ARETL  ARKTE

(Note 33)
(3T 33)

At 1 January 2010 #2010 14 1H 49271 98,093 68,690 3,074 437176 656,304
Net profit and total comprehensive A AR 2 A B

income for the year - - - - 169,855 169,855
Recognition of equity-settled AR R4S AR A

share based payments RERE - - - 7,502 = 7,502
Transfer on cancellation of HRIH AR 25 5 S DA R

equity-settled share based BRI

payments (Note 34) (W7t 34) - - - (10,576) 10,576 =
Transfer on disposal of A0 A 0

a subsidiary - - (2,423) - 2423 -
Transfer L - - 17372 - (17372) =
Dividend paid (Note 13) ERTIE (H7E13) - - - - (191,575) (191,575)
At 31 December 2010 #2010F 1231 H 49271 98,093 83,639 - 411,083 642,086
Net profit and total comprehensive LR EN TN

income for the year - - - - 290,178 290,178
Issuance of new shares BITHR g 28,597 536,168 - - = 564,765
Issuance of capitalisation EA{L BT 124,219 (124,219) - - - -
Cost of issue of new shares FB g THA (29,078) - - - (29,078)
Transfer i - - 24,490 - (24,490) -
Dividend paid (Note 13) ETRE (HaE13) = - = = (64,441) (64,441)

At 31 December 2011 20114 128310 202,087 480,964 108,129 = 612,330 1,403,510
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEBERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

BRE20114F 12 H 31 H IL4FE

2011 2010
20114 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ANRHET T
Operating activities KRS
Profit before tax S A T Vs ] 405,377 237,498
Adjustments for: o
Share of losses of joint ventures JEL G AR 2,054 2,996
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss T A 18 4 T e RR) A 5 A 1,568 903
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W -~ E Kk s 15,285 14,873
Amortisation of intangible assets ST 435 355
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T AL 4 4 384 384
Allowance for inventory obsolescence B 17 3 A 1,711 3,030
Expense recognised in respect of TR i 465 G DA R o R
equity-settled share-based payments A 3 L R B < — 7,502
Interest income FLEMA (2,681) (2,682)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary th A — TR g 2 vl s 18 = 6
Loss (gain) on fair value changes of PE YN TE S E)
investment properties e (lfas) 69 (1,429)
Operating cash flows before LR R R A
movements in working capital e 424,202 263,436
Increase in inventories FERIm (154,088) (156,022)
Increase in trade receivables B 5y e IE R (63,625) (7,266)
Increase in other receivables and prepayments HC A JRE A T R FELA S (18,970) (28,144)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B 5 BEAT K () 38 m (63,214) 65,334
Increase in other payables HC A A 33 18,975 3,442
Increase in long-term deposit IS ipes e i (2,267) (466)
Increase in deferred revenue IEAE Y A LGN 4,091 8,581
Cash generated from operations Ao S e AL B 4 145,104 148,895
Interest paid CATFLE (1,568) (903)
Income taxes paid e TRl (109,297) (38,651)
Net cash from operating activities B EBI ST 34,239 109,341
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HABERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

HBE20114F12 31 H 4R
2011 2010
2011 4 20104F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B3 AR T PNl TH
Investing activities P )
Payments for acquisition of property, W HE 2~ W M
plant and equipment AT K (39,359) (23,207)
Payments for acquisition of intangible assets it 5 ¥ /2 £+ 3K 811) (407)
Investment in a joint venture BEAERE (2,444) (3,584)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments WA fEE R G (75,611) -
Investment in structured bank deposits GEREMEERAT AR R (67,000) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HjEfl‘%% ~ B B kAl
plant and equipment R EE e 452 310
Disposal of a subsidiary B — M B g A 35 - 34,419
Interest received EFLE 2,681 2,682
Decrease (increase) in pledged A ERAT A D
bank deposits (3 Hm) 19,195 (4,056)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities WA (T H) B
Bla v (162,897) 6,157
Financing activities Al 1 )
Proceeds from issue of shares BT A T A5 3 564,765 =
Payment for expenses on issue of shares S EEAT A B 52 (29,078) =
Short-term bank loans raised S IERTT B 63,867 —
Repayment of short-term bank loans &3 S R AT &K (63,867) (40,893)
Dividends paid e E (64,441) (191,575)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities P TR B A (BT )
B RE 471,246 (232,468)
Net increase (decrease) in cash ﬁé&ﬁ%%ﬁ%iﬂﬂ
and cash equivalents W) AR 342,588 (116,970)
Cash and cash equivalents *F?)J Bl K B S A
at beginning of year 161,409 278,379
Cash and cash equivalents at R G MBS EY
end of year, represented by RISRAT 4 ik Je B4
bank balances and cash 503,997 161,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5RO MBI R M 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011

HRZE20114F 12 A 31 H L%

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies
Act as an exempted company with limited liability on 26 April 2002
and was listed on the Singapore Exchange Security Trading Limited
(“SGX-ST”) in June 2003. The Company was later delisted from the
SGX-ST on 6 May 2010 (the “Delisting”). The Company issued a
prospectus (the “Prospectus”) dated 12 September 2011 in relation
to its global offering (“Global Offering”) of the Company’s shares.
The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
on 23 September 2011 (the “Listing”). The addresses of registered
office and the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed

in the Corporate Information section to the annual report.

Pursuant to a special general meeting dated 1 February 2012, the
Company changed its name from Hongguo International Holdings
Limited, 5 B 5 X% 1 A FRZA 7 to C. banner International Holdings
Limited, T A FE B B A BRA H].

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of branded fashion footwear. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries and the joint ventures of the

Company are set out in notes 42 and 20 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

(“RMB?”), which is the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet
effective

The Company has not early applied the following new and revised
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”), IFRSs, amendments and
interpretations (“Int”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new and

revised IFRSs”) that have been issued but are not yet effective:
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED D
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet
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effective (continued)
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments? ] % 55 e o M ) SHTES
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSSs”) (CONTINUED)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 amended in

2010 includes the requirements for the classification and measurement

of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

-62—

IFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of

subsequent reporting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the change relates to financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Specifically, under IFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or

loss was presented in profit or loss.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015, with earlier application permitted.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that [FRS 9 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2015 and that the application of IFRS 9 may
affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities should such designation be made in the

future.
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates or
unconsolidated structured entities. IFRS 12 establishes disclosure
objectives and specifies minimum disclosures that entities must
provide to meet those objectives. The objective of IFRS 12 is that
entities should disclose information that helps users of financial
statements evaluate the nature of and risks associated with its
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests on financial
statements. The disclosure requirements set out in IFRS 12 are more

extensive than those in the current standards.

The directors anticipate that IFRS 12 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning 1

January 2013.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general,
the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by IFRS 13 to cover all

assets and liabilities within its scope.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSSs”) (CONTINUED)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (continued)

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that IFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2013. The application of the new standard is not
expected to have impact on the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements but then result in more extensive disclosures in

the consolidated financial statements.

Except for IFRS 9, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised IFRSs will have no material

impact on the consolidate financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and
properties that are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on

the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements includes applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date

of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGEBUR(H)
(CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued) AR R HE (4)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

TELFEAFULT - 5 W 2 =) A 5 i R A
R DU R S 4 1 A
JCR 2 B B BR T B O R — B o
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Investments in subsidiary Pt 2 W) 3

Investment in subsidiary are included in the Company’s statement of R Jog 2 7 35 i A Yok 2 R el L e 4R 47
financial position at cost less accumulated impairment losses. AT A BRI -

Business combinations WA OF

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and
other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint
control (i.e. when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions
relating to the activities of the joint venture require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control).

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which each venturer has an interest are referred to as jointly

controlled entities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the jointly controlled entities. When
the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or
exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled

entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of a jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount

of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,

after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in a jointly controlled entity. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly controlled
entity are recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not

related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates,

discounts, sales related taxes and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods in the normal course of business is

recognised when goods are delivered and legal title is passed.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers under the
Group’s customer loyalty programme are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods sold and the
award credits that are earned by the customers. The consideration
allocated to the award credits is measured by reference to their
fair value — the amount for which the award credits could be sold
separately. Such consideration is not recognised as revenue at the
time of the initial sale transaction-but is deferred and recognised
as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and the Group’s
obligations have been fulfilled. Under the Group’s customer loyalty
programme, customers are entitled to convert their award credits into
cash equivalents upon the fulfilment of certain criteria as set out in the

terms and conditions of the Group’s customer loyalty programme.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from

operating leases is described in the accounting policy below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases wherever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct cost incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
lease, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentive is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance

lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statements of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis. Prepaid lease payments which are to be amortised

in the next twelve months or less are classified as current assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets

are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic

and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFFIEOR ()
(CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit costs B AR A i A

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to

the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted by the Company to employees of the Group
in an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,

with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

options reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have enacted or substantively enacted by

the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE&GIBUR (4)
(CONTINUED)
Taxation (continued) BeIE (%)
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the ARG TS AR N B E S A R AR T
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial (B BRL 1B IR LA i A i ol T ) A R A
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation AT I 25 AR A RRR AE B JE o — R T
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for JRE SRR R R 2 A A R IR A B T A A o il
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally JUT A AT R IR 25 A (LA TR BB Ug B T
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it BE A 35t i n] Bl A R 08 R A A
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those FR ) — f5 i 2 40 A0 A0 JE 72 o K] A
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax W TR (EHS & DF RS R A 5 2 e
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference PR I8 A IR A B 5 2 g s A — JE A
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a Sy o HA B R B IR T A AR IR 22
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction B> IR T HERR a% S5 IR A B I I A
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. i »
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary TR B ) S e A ZE R £ AH B
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in JRE G R TR 2 A e R R A B T A > M
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal 7 A [ BE 125 ) 1T IRF 25 10 48 (o] B T Ry 2=
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary B AT e AS & n] RLR AR ] R BR o R 3%
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax S5 B TR 25 AH B A0 BT el T R 2 A
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with A ) HIE o T P A A T RS B A L
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it V14 HRE SRS Vit ) 35 Yo R R IR 2 AR i
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to FE A 0] ARSI 0] ()15 LN AR o

utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of 0% SUE A T 11 R TR (L A R A &5
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer TR 38 8] B /0 & R T AT RE A 7 AR 1Y
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or A e R AT P A AR A A FR R 1 7 il
part of the asset to be recovered. [B] 1) & E o

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that R A ol % A M RS A R
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled HELA R AR OB R (BETR) T A
or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been 1 B 5 1 A 7 U PO 4 3038 P O B R
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. oo IRERLTEE A N AR S MO
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax o DL AN 4 5] 300 10 7 7R s 0 45 oK Rr
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group S P AR BB R S > DU M Bl A5 T H
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the e AR IRTEE -

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current or deferred tax for the year is recognised in profit or AT PR B A8 A B TE A 4E £ R iERE o M
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other 7 B 7E oAt 2 1 i 5 A0 THE R Bl L 2 A RE
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current 2ENTER R IE B BRI » %S0T - B
and deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or H R 30 2 A YE 7R A L Ath 4 A7 A 45 BR B 4%
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises A RE 5 A TSR o T B S Bl A0 S TE R 2E
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is A w et EmELE > B

included in the accounting for the business combination. BEMES AT A ORI SR EFEN o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties under construction) less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property

is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE&GIBUR (4)
(CONTINUED)
Intangible assets B & &
Intangible assets acquired separately W0 W B v R
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately e A ) A PR R AR A M
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated FE 9 AR ok 2 R 8 K B R 4R 5
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line W o 42 B AR 134 B nT (A 0 R R
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and B o A& FT AT AT 09 R R B L 1
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, 5 IR A R RE SR B A7 AT 0] A B B R g
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a TEH LM AT o R A T 17 e R HA AT
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are A 30 %) SR TR T 0 A T 2 T IR (E
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment AR -
losses.
Derecognition of intangible assets BT il v A O
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future M S Y H B R TR ) ) B
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and TR AE N7 A 26 5 ) 25 IR > B WE BRI R
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured B o RO W BRI S T A AR A i 2%
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying Kk 18 (Rl 2 B T 445 3K T8 3 B
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is 2 SR T (B T Y 22 ) A B TR
derecognised. IRF i R 25 N TR
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill A BRI & B (W2 BRI ) WA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying A A0 4 A 45 TR A B [ B A
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether T B TY B i 2 MR > DA 2 R A AT
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment EZEERECEZBEGHENT S -
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset FETEARATRZ 5 RS > RTAN ¥ 2 (9 T i [
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if A TR E BE MG IR () TR
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of BE o QA AT B Al A IS Y ATl e <5
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the R AREEG R EE TR B & e
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable ST A B Rk AR Ry v
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets 43 T 2 ] Rl A B R — B0y i R R Y B
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise SR T /A o

they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and AT AT Il 4 B 2 N V(B ek B A B AR
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows B (B A TR o AT AN A
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that {ERE > Al FE R 2R B (F ] s ke H i 5
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the W g B (10 T 35 A e S 1 A o
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows AR B4 I B A 0 R A R 1Y

have not been adjusted. BiRT Py s HA EE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost

is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following specified
categaries: loans and receivables and available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. loans
and receivables (including trade receivables and other receivables,
structured bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less any impairment.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or

held-to-maturity investments.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.
For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest

or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, as well as observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE&GIBUR (4)
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued) SR T H (%)
Financial assets (continued) S RIE R (4)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) 2 1 (A
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the G TRl 7 R TET 0 50 9T A 4 VR 7 L Uk
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception DA G o MR S B A RIS TE R
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced A1 - i i (2 08 6 A R B e o
through the use of an allowance account. When a receivable is IR AT K AR B S AT A [ R s A R R
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance TEHEAT SRR oSG AHORY Y L AR i Il 2 %
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off FEAMEICIR B o #HCHR B 09 R (E A2 )
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying R AR N IERR -

amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent WIS AT EN SR EEm S - W
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease A5 AR TR > Dol M 1 < B 0 ok
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment D RRT BRI T BELAE R I (A 1R B A 1
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is A SR RTHERE P G 1R S i iE AR T
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount DA [a] > Q48 lml Yo I i ) R T (L
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed A% 8 88 L SIF7 S i R D (i A o A 1 4
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been BHRLAS ©

recognised.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative af ik A A O A R B R Ja T
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income A A 2 T i 5 2R R R 2 E R RS Bk
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the impairment $8 0SB i U 5 W TR 2 PR 4R -

takes place.

Impairment losses on AFS equity investments will not be reversed A L B A B Y il (s R LR
in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value AR & 8 25 R 0] o a1 s 18 Al R AR
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other NS AT A 38 o 7 A 2 T 4R A
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment revaluation TERR SO P& AL Rl N 2 5] -

reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments SRR AR TR

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity A R RS AT 0 4 B S R AR TR
are classified in accordance with the substance of the contractual WG 4 22 PRI TR 75 I < B A M e A T
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity B EFET N -

instrument.

Equity instruments AT A

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest B A T2 T s WA AR 40 5 i A5 & 15 18 5 A
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity I TR R A W ATATT & 4 o A SR B E
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds AT B A T L e B i T 19 3 TR L e %

received, net of direct issue costs. T RATERR. -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGHBUR (H)
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued) SR T H (4)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) S b E (A1)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

AT
SRR (158 5 R H AL RE AT 3OR
A B RG2S I A i o

Effective interest method EREFY B
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised B S T R 4 Rl A B AN

cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

TEA BR A TR 23 BC LB BH Sl 7 i o
] 22 T 35 788 4= B AR A 0D 4 S0 B (A
T ) 290 A ik R I 22 R TR B Y B 4 400 1]
Al TR 2 B 4 STAS (B M AT PR A
B 3 Gy A T A i B AT R B BT
2 1T R B ) AT YE R ST AN A o

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis. ) S5 BA ST 4 B R L A A T Y
Derecognition BT T

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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4.

4212 A 31 H IR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

Impairment of trade receivables

Trade and other receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.
Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the

asset is impaired.

In making the judgement, management considered the procedures that
have been in place to monitor this risk as a significant proportion of the
Group’s working capital is devoted to trade and other receivables. In
determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts is required,
the Group takes into consideration the aging status and the likelihood
of collection. Specific allowance is only made for trade and other
receivables that are unlikely to be collected. As at 31 December 2011,
the carrying amount of trade receivables was RMB243,555,000 (2010:
RMB179,930,000).

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

‘Write-down of inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Also, the Group regularly inspects and reviews its inventories to

4.

#HE2011

52 Ak A B KA A W
P 3 2R IR (4

17 5 ok
T B 4 FRLAS % ] 5 B (B T 2 R
AR o MEAb > ACSR I 5 ) 2 2 S i e L

F12H31H 14

identify slow-moving and obsolete inventories. The amount of the 8 DL A A B A S o WE
impairment loss is measured as the difference between inventories’ 18 & B R B A7 B A B my A B A (1 i
cost and realised value. HLZAH o

The identification of impairment of inventories requires the use of e A (R T B ) b R A T

judgement and estimate of expected net realised value. Where the net
realised value is lower than the cost, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of inventories
was RMB561,840,000 (2010: RMB410,263,000), net of write-down
of inventories of RMB32,550,000 (2010: RMB30,839,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment at the end of the reporting period. During the reporting
period, management is satisfied that there is no change in the estimated
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment from prior year. The

carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the end of the

A BB TRAE o G n] 5 B (AR ARUA

] R A A H ORISR o A 2011412 A
310 > FRIREE A AR 561,840,000
TE(20104F : A\ R #5410,263,000 7T ) > 411
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reporting period are disclosed in Note 15. HIRTAT (A BT 5E 15 N4 R o
Impairment of property, plant and equipment LYE 3 Wi‘f‘t Bk i A
At the end of the reporting period, management reviews the carrying T A W AL R A5 T e R e 2 -

amounts of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, management carried out impairment
reviews of its property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments. In making its judgement, management considered the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and
suitable discount rates in order to calculate the present value. As at 31
December 2011, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was RMB109,899,000 (2010: RMB86,277,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition in relation to the award credits earned by the
customers under the Group’s customer loyalty program

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, sales of goods
that result in award credits for customers under the Group’s customer
loyalty program are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable is allocated between the goods sold and the award credits
that are earned by the customers. The portion allocated to the award
credits is deferred and recognised as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled. The
amount of revenue recognised is based on the number of award credits
that have been redeemed in exchange for awards, relative to the total

number expected to be redeemed.

The Group reviews the total number of award credits expected to
be redeemed at the year, taking into accounts of various factors
including the number of award credits not redeemed by the customers
upon expiry of respective award credits. In view of the short period
of operation of the Group’s customer loyalty program, and lack of
historical information regarding the proportion of award credits that
would be redeemed during the valid period of the award credits, the
directors of the Company, in determining the total number of award
credits expected to be redeemed, estimate that no customer will not
redeem the award credit points under its customer loyalty program
and all of the award credits earned by the customers would be
redeemed within one year. The amount of deferred revenue recognised
in accordance with IFRIC Interpretation 13 “Customer Loyalty
Programmes” is accordingly classified as current liability at the end of
the reporting period. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of
deferred revenue was RMB12,672,000 (2010: RMBS,581,000).

This estimate will be reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revision to the
expected number of award credits to be redeemed will be made if there
is significant difference between the actual number of award credits

redeemed and the expected number redeemed in the future.

4.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 5. WA PR W TR
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will 7 B [ LA DA O A 4 0B A
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to PR A0 L AR > Al Rp i i (B AL i
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. B Je e A 5t i o B 1) B SR AL d K [l
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year. oo AL [ R WS O K B b AR B ) A S
o
The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to AR AL A PR AL A m A N REAG
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and Wit > ELFECEEATIIRAS - Rl S AR B
retained profits. F o
The management of the Company review the capital structure on an AR ) TG R A R e B AR 42
on-going basis. As part of this review, the management consider the M o VB 25 B IE B B 0 — B0y > B I RR
cost of capital and the risks associate with each class of capital. Based T B AR T Ry B ) A AR B
on recommendations of the management, the Group will balance its FERE G R R > RNEEG S
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share W0 ST, B A BE AT B By 1 (] DA
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the T BEAT O 5 S I B A 655 i T
redemption of existing debt. HE AL
Categories of financial instruments Al T H B
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities, B T e 4 B (R A5 ML SRAT AR
except for structured bank deposits, are as follows: FON) ZRRIHE AT
2011 2010
2011 4¢ 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T PN o
Financial assets 4 Rl G
Available-for-sale investments AL R 75,611 —
Loans and receivables B MK IR
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BB 4 R B &%) 831,990 384,256
Financial liabilities AL
Amortised cost B A 222,813 223,342
Financial risk management objectives and policies 4 Tl K L R B R

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, AFS investments, instrument structured bank deposits,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and trade and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in

respective notes.

The risk associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk management

The primary economic environment in which the principal subsidiaries
of the Company operate is the PRC and their functional currency
is RMB. However, certain sales and purchases of the Group are
denominated in USD, which is currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities and expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Transactions in Singapore Dollars (“SGD”) and Hong
Kong Dollars (“HKD”) are limited.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated

monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as

A L b R R W L H

(#1)
S BT B

AN ) S A A Y T AL R
558 0 v IR R T RE W N RRE o R
> AR T 5 LSS CEHE » o0
P AT AR I B T Re W LASN I B
SNf 8 A S I SRR © AT 38 ot
(B3t Te 1) Feds ot ([T 1) wHER 28
HERAR -

TR H > A AN S (B B W
LEWABEIT

follows:
Liabilities Assets
1% #
2011 2010 2011 2010
2011 4¢ 2010 4F 20114 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BET AR¥TT AREFTE ARETC
USD ESn 2,313 - 110,228 34,460
SGD L — - 489 2,769
HKD #oT - - 3,834 14,165

Foreign currency risk arising from structured bank deposits as

disclosed in Note 26 would be minimal.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
but the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% change
in RMB against USD, SGD and HKD. 5% represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currencies denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit before
tax for the year where the relevant foreign currencies strengthen 5%
against RMB. For a 5% weakening of the relevant foreign currency
against RMB, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the

profit before tax for the year.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 5.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (continued)

ARG MBS ER R I 5
YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
BE20114F12H 31 HIEFE

Iﬁ@flﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%lﬁ

A e JEL B 4 B (4)
SRR T (78
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T NRHET T

Increase in profit before tax where the foreign
currency strengthen 5% against RMB:

USD impact

SGD impact

HKD impact

Interest rate risk management

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

nahes AR N RETHE 5%
T i s A1

For

BNy o R

Vi

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk for certain

of its interest bearing financial assets, including bank balances,

which carried interests at prevailing market rates.

(ii)  Fair value interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk for

its interest bearing financial assets, including structed bank

deposits and pledged bank deposits, which carried interests at

fixed rates.

Exposure of interest rate risk to the Group is minimal as the balances

are all short-term in nature. The Group currently does not have an

interest rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors

interest rate risk exposure and will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arises.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as
a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group has to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
The Group uses publicly available financial information and its
own trading records to rate its major customers. The Group only
transacts with customers that have good credit quality. The Group’s
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled
by the counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the

management.

The Group’s credit risk primarily relates to the Group’s trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, available-
for-sale investments and structured bank deposits. There is significant
concentration of credit risk as the top five biggest customers account
for over approximately 13% 2011 (2010: 10%) of the carrying
amounts of trade receivables as at 31 December. The management of
the Group generally grants credit only to customers with good credit
ratings and also closely monitors overdue trade debts. The recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and adequate impairment for doubtful debts has been
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the
Group considers that the credit risk associated with the Group’s trade

and other receivables is significantly reduced.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk in relation to
the AFS investments because it’s a fund managed by a fund manager
investing in listed equities trading in Hong Kong, Japan and Taiwan
stock exchange. The Group will monitor the level of exposure to lower

the risk exposure including redemption of the AFS investments.

The credit risk in relation to the Group’s bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits and structured bank deposits is not significant

as the corresponding banks are reputable banking institutions.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 88% (31 December
2010:87%) of the total trade receivable as at 31 December 2011.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects

of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date in which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both

interest and principal cash flows.

5.

BE20114F12H 31 HIEFE

WA R B A BE R St B TR

(#1)
380 L B

TEAE PR B B 2w B e o AR A B
AEFF P A HERE L2 TE Y — E KPR B
ERBEE - DAAEEEERAE
A0 B D B 4 U R ) S

N RFEIIA L B A m IR A
R AR BE C 1 5 W R kRt I & 40
FIE o TR TIAREAE B AT RERE T 5
AR B8 o L LSBT G 09 < B A R UG B
B - AROIEFE XA ST &0

=)

B °

Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year cash flows amount
i E ¥R REBBE
FBEAIR IR AR i A I T
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#EFIE AR®FT AR®TC
At 31 December 2011 2011412 31 H
Financial liabilities oA=L
Trade and other payables B 5 I A RE A I - 222,813 222,813 222,813
At 31 December 2010 2010412 H31 H
Financial liabilities Gl B
Trade and other payables B 5y T Ho A AT E - 223,342 223,342 223,342
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5%

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value
The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

- the fair value of financial assets (AFS investments) with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid

prices and ask prices, respectively; and

- the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing

models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in

the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments are based on information prepared
and reported to the chief operating decision makers, the board of
directors of the Company for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. The Group is organised into two
segments, retail and wholesale of branded fashion footwear (“Retail
and wholesale”) and contract manufacturing of footwear (“Contract
manufacturing”). These segments are the basis on which the Group

reports its segment information.

5.

B A L B P R M B TR
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I

— B EAEGGK R AR R A G B
Wy e S M E (]t
BE) A TES N2 M ERERN
T35 A AE B B b AT M E
3

— oAb Al E Ko il B R AT
(B AR 9% 2 0 B & U B 4 B0 AT 0
0 R A E (A AT REE o

AN T ERB L > TEERE M B RR N %
B AR N BR Y < T E T A R
MR T BEL L AR A o

WA B 53 8 B
YRR Y RS 23115 N
VAR £ E Y.L EA PP R
e o DL VIR R BT R B - A
SIS L TS - B B I 14
115 Bt 8 (T 45 et 98 1) DA BOREI 42 40
MR (R HERE D) o R0 H T R4
S T 2 03 ORI



REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from
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continuing operations by operating segments for the year:

AR A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011

2 20114E12H 31 H IE4F R
WA B H &R (48)

SR BAE AR B AR TR SRS 2 I
i SRR TN

2011 2010
2011 4% 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
UNEH & YNGR T
Segment revenue SrEBUA
Retail and wholesale T it
— external sales — AR & 1,807,873 1,366,916
Contract manufacturing G H A E
— external sales — AR e 235,823 208,047
— inter-segment sales — TR IR S 14,256 15,003
Segment revenue SrEBIA 2,057,952 1,589,966
Eliminations ESge (14,256) (15,003)
Group revenue LEA 2,043,696 1,574,963
Segment results PantiE S
Retail and wholesale R Y IR 414,303 225,332
Contract manufacturing HHEE 22,454 18,272
436,757 243,604
Unallocated other income and A3 Fi AR B BH S DL K
expenses and other gains and losses (note) s B R (BEE) (27,758) =
Unallocated finance costs Ay B B AR (1,568) (903)
Share of loss of joint ventures oA A TR (2,054) (2,996)
Profit before income tax 53 ST 745 88 i ¥ ) 405,377 239,705
Income tax expense RSB 3 (115,199) (67,643)
Net profit for the year AR AL
(continuing operations) (FFAEZETS) 290,178 172,062

Note: The amount mainly represented the unallocated legal, professional and

related expenses incurred for the Global Offering.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment results represent the gross profits earned
by each segment including other income, other gains and losses and
excluding distribution and selling expense and administrative and
general expenses. This is the measure reported to CODM for the

purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

ML - AREEE TR RS EE A RO
o~ SEERANBRAB S -

K& o Hl 2 B BRSBTS R
k3 Tl 2 AR SR R E R — B e 2 ER
SRR AT 2 B A > LA H A
WA~ HAblloas KR > A EIE S 8
1945 B ST DA BAT B R — BB S - BT 18]
EBEE R AR 2 At - DMEE IR
IIHE AR BLRTAL -

G 0 ] 8 B T4 TS (B A AT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
BE20114E 12 A 31 H IL4EE
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WA Ky ERE R (4)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by S AL [H 4 K Ay R R 43 1 R EE I ARy
operating segment: Bran s -
2011 2010
2011 4% 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T oo PNRL S T
Segment assets 4B G
Continuing operations g
Retail and wholesale ES -V &k 1,638,093 908,226
Contract manufacturing G H A E 213,261 236,980
Total segment assets Ay A 1,851,354 1,145,206
Eliminations HH (127,321) (154,217)
Unallocated P 6,994 5,804
Total consolidated assets ARG R 1,731,027 996,793
Segment liabilities Iy fiE
Continuing operations FRAES
Retail and wholesale R Y iR 300,237 311,081
Contract manufacturing BRI E 27,552 80,583
Total segment liabilities i S=Kisik 327,789 391,664
Eliminations H 272) (36,957)

Total consolidated liabilities LA AR 327,517 354,707
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Sr MBS HRR M RE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
HBE20114F12 31 H 4R
REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WA Ksr R R (4H)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information Hfth 43 #8 R
Continuing operations Frgms
Retail and Contract
wholesale manufacturing Total
TE KA 7 #H: E Hit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
YN T PNRL S ST PNSL: S aT
Amounts included in the measure of LG AE 5534358 6w ]
Segment profit or loss: sk SR
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE20114F12H31H
R4
Depreciation expense Pres b 12,782 2,503 15,285
Amortisation of intangible assets U 5 i 435 = 435
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 {5 FH 4 6 384 — 384
Allowance (reversal) BB A7 BT (35 )
for inventory obsolescence 1,788 (77) 1,711
Purchase of property, plant IEE W -~ WS K
and equipment 38,227 1,132 39,359
Purchase of intangible assets T Y G 811 = 811
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - WS RS
plant and equipment JIT A IE 399 53 452
Interest income FLE YA (2,503) (178) (2,681)
Interest expense FILEBH 32 1,568 — 1,568
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE2010F 12 H31 H
R4
Depreciation expense i 10,376 3,878 14,254
Amortisation of intangible assets T o Y 313 - 313
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 FH 4 &Y 384 = 384
Allowance for inventory obsolescence PR EE A BB 2,550 480 3,030
Purchase of property, plant WEE IS ~ R BGR A
and equipment 21,870 956 22,826
Purchase of intangible assets W B T G 407 — 407
Expense recognised in respect of MERB LARE SR 5500 2
equity-settled share-based payments JRe A 3k BA 32 6,206 945 7,151
Proceeds from disposal of property, Y - B G
plant and equipment UEE if')( 310 - 310
Interest income LRk (2,522) (160) (2,682)

Interest expense LS B i 903 = 903
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HRZE20114F 12 A 31 H 1L

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operation from external
customers, based on location of customers and information about its

non-current assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed

WA B o3 VR R ()
b Y
ESUES/ES J00 il P

AARFB [ 1255 TR ) o) 2 AR
J5 R 2 Wl o DL R A BT AE
B oy 2 I T B A BRI

below:
Revenue from
external customers
A H AR P AR
2011 2010
20114 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARHTF T
PRC e 1,806,626 1,367,417
United States of America = 237,070 207,546
Total AR 2,043,696 1,574,963
Non-current assets
I i B
2011 2010
20114 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T PN T
PRC i 189,849 162,847

Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets.

There is no customer contributing over 10% of the total sales of the

Group during the years.

BERE < JF Vi) A AN E R R A B

AR DRI 4 5 A A B AR AR A A
10% 2 E Ik »
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2 20114E12H 31 H IE4F R

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES AND 7. i A B A K 3 At 2 R
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES il g5 48

2011 2010

2011 4 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T I INGL S TH

Continuing operations FRATETS
Government grants (note 1) BUNHI A (71 1) 25,209 3,119
Interest income on bank deposits SRATAE SRR YA 2,681 2,682
Rental income FHAe A 849 71
(Loss) gain from changes in fair value WG AT EEEH)
of investment properties (548 Uiz (69) 1,429
Legal and professional fees (note 2) R EERR (M H2) (27,758) =
Net foreign exchange gains [ 52,5 i V3% 167 268
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary A — KB A R AR 2 R - (6)
Others HoAth 1,812 1,513
2,891 9,076
Note 1: The amount mainly represented the subsidies received from the local BRFRE 1 c %4 B R SR i R 42 13 B 1 T A b
governments where the Group entities are located. BURF Z A B4
Note 2:  The amount mainly represented the legal, professional and related expenses fiak2 » e EEERNREE L ETEAZE
incurred for the Global Offering and the Listing. B B RARBR L o
FINANCE COSTS 8. WMBA
2011 2010
2011 48 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
UNCH & B NR T T8
Continuing operations AR ST

Interest on short-term bank loans S HERAT BRI E 1,568 903




—94-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O A I
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H|E 2011412 31 HIFFEE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM 9. FRAEEWBEBLN A

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit before tax for the year from continuing operations has been

7R A B R A S 5 IR B IR A AR 4 BR

arrived at after charging (crediting): (FTA) AF £ -
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG T ANRMT T
Depreciation of property, W~ W R PT R
plant and equipment 15,285 14,254
Amortisation of lease premium b fof ) RERH B 2 6
for land use rights 384 384
Amortisation of intangible assets ST e 435 313
Total depreciation and amortization Pres s AL AR 16,104 14,951
Auditors’ remuneration 2% BRI 4 1,800 1,500
Employee benefits expense (H=E i Ea 333,126 255,909
Cost of inventories recognised as TR 2y 8 2 A B A
an expense (including allowance (fL 45 BRE A7 B o)
for inventories obsolescence) 745,435 501,615

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RELATING TO 10. i3 2 ) (B F B E B M

CONTINUING OPERATIONS) )
2011 2010
2011 4¢ 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET 0 ANR¥ETFIC
Current tax: B HRLTE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) Hh 1 2E TSR
(TSRS HL D) 118,933 65,082
Withholding tax THANB 494 4,550
Under provision of EIT in prior years AT AR AR TS BB N 2 51 117
Deferred tax credit: IR A
Current year (Note 21) ARG (it 21) 4,279) (2,106)

115,199 67,643
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RELATING TO

CONTINUING OPERATIONS) (CONTINUED)

The tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2011 can be reconciled

to the profit before tax as follows:

2 20114E12H 31 H IE4E R

10. Fr #9382 A (52 45 45 28 % M

) (%)
HE20114E12 31 HIEFE 2 BLIEBI

SRR v AT

2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T oo YNGR T
Profit before tax (from continuing operations)  BRBL Al Al (2K 3 FFA ) 405,377 239,705
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% (2010: 25%) & B2 TS BB R 25%
FHAZBIE (2010 4F < 25%) 101,344 59,926
Tax effect of share of losses of joint ventures I3 A A R B Y 314 875
Tax effect of expenses not RATEBLHS B A
deductible for tax purpose B S 2 B 11,419 8,026
Tax effect of income not 7 LAt 7] 12 W [ 21 2 B
taxable in other jurisdiction WA 2 ol 5 s 2 (1,217) (4,017)
Under provision in respect of prior year WA AR A AN R 51 117
Tax effect of PRC EIT exemption R e A TSR 2 B S - (2,813)
Withholding tax THANBE 3,288 5,529
Income tax expense for the year AF N BB S
(relating to continuing operations) (BLERAE S A BR) 115,199 67,643

The Company incorporated in Bermuda is not subject to any income
tax during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: nil).

Best Invent Holdings Limited (“Best Invent”) and Best Value Profits
Limited (“Best Value”), two subsidiaries of the Company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) are not subject to any income tax
during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: nil).

Allied Great International Holdings Limited (“Allied Great”)and
China Ease Enterprise Limited (“China Ease”), two subsidiaries of the
Company incorporated in Hong Kong have had no assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong profits tax during the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: nil).

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on EIT
(the “New Tax Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On
6 December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation
Regulations of the New Tax Law. The New Tax Law has unified the
income tax rate to 25% for all the PRC enterprises from 1 January 2008

onwards.

AN B R RS AR S > SRR E
20114F 12 F 31 B 1 4F B B RS0 AT A BT
EBLIE (2010 4F © 4HE) o

A ) 7 ] B & A T Best Invent Holdings
Limited ([Best Invent|) % Best Value
Profits Limited ([ Best Value ) ¥ /& j&
LREE ([958R LB ) R sor - i
AEZE20114E 12 31 H IL4F B B8
ATAT T A58 (2010 4F © 41) o

A% ) T TR B RS A D REE S P 4R
([ Allied Great]) Je#eaE A>3 ([ 2256 1) 7
WML > BURBZE 2011412 H 31
1k 4 e TR LB U ) 2B AN 7 s )
386 (2010 4F : 4E) -

IRPEEE 63 PER R FFE A » B 2007 4F
3 H 16 H A8 B A 3 A5 Bk (T #BL
B1) o 2007412 A 6 H » A B B B
BEM RS BB o BB AS T A
WA 2 TS BB R — 5 25% > A A
2008 4F 1 H 1 HALHEAT »
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
BE 2011412 A 31 H L4

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RELATING TO 10. P 2 ) (B FF 4 £ % M

CONTINUING OPERATIONS) (CONTINUED)
Subsidiaries of the Company located in the PRC are subject to PRC

EIT rate of 25% (2010: 25%) pursuant to the relevant PRC Enterprise
Income Tax laws, except for Nanjing Soft Garment & Footwear Co.,
Ltd. (“Nanjing Soft”).

Nanjing Soft, being Foreign Investment Enterprise registered in
Nanjing, Jiangsu in the PRC, is entitled to an exemption from EIT for
two years starting from their first profit-making year, followed by a
50% tax relief for the following three years. Nanjing Soft was entitled
to and enjoyed the first tax exemption year in 2006, and a 50% tax
relief for the three years ended 31 December 2010. The applicable tax
rate of Nanjing Soft in 2011 is 25% (2010: 12.5%).

Under the relevant tax law and implementation regulations in the
PRC, withholding income tax is applicable to dividends payable to
investors that are “non-PRC tax resident enterprises”, which do not
have an establishment or place of business in the PRC, or which have
such establishment or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or place of business, to
the extent such dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under
such circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC subsidiaries
to non-PRC tax resident group entities in Hong Kong shall be subject
to the withholding tax at 5%. As at 31 December 2011 except for
those provided for as details in Note 21 deferred tax in relation to
withholding income tax for the remaining undistributed profits of
RMB 519,458,000 (2010: RMB258,486,000) retained by PRC entities
have not been provided as the directors of the Company did not
anticipate to distribute for such profits from its PRC subsidiaries in the

foreseeable future.

I3 ) (#1)
6 AR A A PR ) (T T

FPIRAE D) Ab o A2 R v 1 1 g 2
A AR B 11 e A 3 T AR B 25 %
BB (2010 4F : 25%) i »

AT IR AR B — G0 v B VL AR R o A A
AL RSN > B AR AR
T AR TR A FE T AR B B AR A
50 % M BUHE B o B RUETIRERIA 2006
FHREMEZAEE M AR AFEE WREE
2010 F 12 H31 HIEW = MFEERNEZESR
50% MIBLHE 4 2 o mg AT IR AR 2011 4F 78
FAMBLR E5 25% (20104F & 12.5% ) o

AR5 v B0 AH BE A Ok BLE R 1) > MEAST T
[ EBUE JE R A2 | $E & I 0
DAVR B v 55 (A 1) 90 75 2 BR A5 T4
1HBL o RZAE 1 A R b BRI R ST M
BB > SO B A R ST A B
S 55 T AEAH BR 9T 15 BT B b BRUELAE v | 3%
ST M T S35 T TR o BR LA UL -
w1 B 2 ) e A v B A Y I v BB
S B S B B A e TS, 5 ZEAR 5%
BLARBANTEARL o 1R 20114£12 310 >
e kw0 OB B N R 519,458,000
JG (2010 4F = AR 258,486,000 7T) i A
43 B8 A7 168 A 1 TE 4T 0T 15 B4 1) 10 48 ol
TR RN R 21) 4h > AN A
A NG A g A w] L2 A o ik [
IR A Jo 2 ) A ) o TR SR AR A B 9
f#i o
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 8 December 2010, the Group entered into a transfer agreement
with a related company to dispose of a subsidiary, Jiangsu Unity
Corporation Co., Limited (“Jiangsu Unity”), which carried out all
of the Group’s retail and wholesale of international and domestic
branded apparel operations (details of which are set out in Note 35).
The disposal was completed on 8 December 2010, on which date
control of Jiangsu Unity passed to the acquirer. Details of the assets
and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of the loss on disposal,

are set out in Note 35.

The results of the discontinued operations (i.e. Jiangsu Unity)
included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of cash flow for the period from 1 January
2010 to 8 December 2010, are set out below:

BE20114F12H 31 HIEFE

11. & IE¥E#%

20104 12 H 8 H » A4 B B — X B Wk
) S — TEUHE TR Bt v o A% R SR S R UL
RS ZE A BR A A] ([VLAR 45 1)
B o IIE & 2R 20104F 12 H 8 H 58
B> VLR T 465 0 2 ) B A 5% H G T
W7 o T H B 1 B RN R
BB F AR 535

AR A AT 8 R R AR A B A i RN U
G Y £ 1 ZEHS () G0 VTR 1 &) iR
201041 H 1 HE 2010412 H 8 H MK
AT

Loss for the period from discontinued operations T4 I BN ER

01/01/2010—

08/12/2010

2010F1H1H =

20104F12)18H

RMB’000

NS

Revenue A 18,324
Cost of sales B LA (15,569)
Distribution and selling expenses 38 BB B BH S (3,617)
Administrative and general expenses AT e — B 32 (1,345)
Loss before tax BB Hil s 18 (2,207)
Loss for the period LUTNY o5 (2,207)
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BE 2011412 A 31 H L4

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (conTINUED)  11.

Loss for the period from discontinued operations include the

following:

CA Ik 328 (4])
ELA LR ST N R LS AR -

01/01/2010—-
08/12/2010
2010F1 H1HE
20104F12 H 8 H

RMB’000
PN o
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment )2 ~ &5 M85 619
Amortisation of intangible assets ST e 8 42
Total depreciation and amortisation Pres ks A 661
Employee benefits expense: 1 EAm A BH 3
Cost of defined contribution plans FE R GT H1 A As 454
Share-based payments DI04 BB 1 S ) 351
Other employee benefits HoAt A B A5 A1) 2,003
Total employee benefits expense 1i& B 48 A B S A% 2,808
Cost of inventories recognised as T HfERR 29 8 I A7 B AR
an expense (including allowance (L5 B A2 B )
for inventories obsolescence) 15,569
Cash flows from discontinued operations O 4 1 SR Bl il
Net cash inflows from operating activities BB TS Bl A TR 269
Net cash used in investing activities BOE ST I Bl a3 A (381)
Net cash outflows B4 R (112)
12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. #F R E M

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company were

as follows:

CATEER AN R R M m T

2011 2010
2011 4 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T o NS B
Directors’ emoluments: A4

— Directors’ fee —H e 122 -
— Salaries and other benefits — T M HoAh AR A 2,466 2,152

— Performance related — R BUAH BR HUE A 3K
incentive payments (note (1)) (Ktat (1)) 17,400 18,049
— Share based payments — DARR A5y s BEBRE Y S AT = 950

— Contributions to retirement — BARAE AT AR
benefits scheme 68 63
Total Gt 20,056 21,214
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG MBS ER R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011

2 20114E12H 31 H IE4E R

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEKEBME (8)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Performance Contributions
related to retirement
Salaries and incentive  Share-based benefits
Directors’ fee other benefits payments payments scheme Total
THR KB DR A gt B A
3 Hflifl LIRS 23pt it Bk A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT  AR¥Fr  AR®FL  AREFr  ARBFr  AR%FL
(note (1))
(W3 (1))
For the year ended BE1F12731H
31 December 2011 I3
Chen Yixi PRZE R = 311 5,800 = = 6,111
Li Wei Zi - 656 2,900 - 17 3573
Zhao Wei e - 605 2,900 - iV 3522
Huo Li B - 527 2,900 - iV 3,444
Xu Tingyu TREHR - 367 2,900 - 17 3,284
Miao Bingwen Bmx = = = = = =
Xu Chengming (note (2)) FRH (it 2) 41 - - - = 41
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (note (2)) ~ BEf5 (47 2) 41 = = = = 41
Li Xindan (note (2)) 2O E 2) 40 - - - - 40
122 2,466 17,400 - 68 20,056
For the year ended BE20104E127131H
31 December 2010 I3
Chen Yixi PR - 326 7219 - 7,545
Li Wei Zi - 607 5415 - 16 6,038
Zhao Wei il - 47 1,805 255 17 2,550
Huo Li BN - 418 1,305 m 16 2,461
Xu Tingyu TREH - 328 1,805 179 14 2,326
Miao Bingwen Bmx - - - = = =
Chen Seow Phun John (note (3)) Chen Seow Phun John (4 (3)) - - - 98 928
S. Chandra Das (note (3)) S. Chandra Das (7 (3)) - - - 98 98
Liu Yunguang (note (3)) Liu Yunguang (#7#(3)) - - - 98 98
- 2,192 18,049 950 63 21,214
Notes: (1) The performance related incentive payments is determined as a BT = (1) 2R BUAH B JHOh Ao 3k 2 A 2 o1 4% P9 At )
percentage of the net profit of the Group during the year. Z A HEE -
Notes: (2) The directors were appointed on 26 August 2011. FfE&E : (2) FZSFFEFF 2011458 H 26 H#EZRAL -
Notes: (3) The directors resigned on 23 May 2010. ek = (3) "% #FR 201045 H 23 HBHT ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011

BE 2011412 A 31 H L4

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12.

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The five highest paid individuals included 5 directors of the Group

for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 5). Details of whose

emoluments are set out above.

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

5 R B (1)

BE2011F12H31HILEE > A&
T AR Y 44 E (2010
oA o HENAEFERFE R L3 -

WA 2 & T oI -

2011 2010

2011 4¢ 20104

No, of employees No, of employees

i B % H i B ¥ H

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 ¥ 7T £ 3,000,000 5 7C — 3
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 #7C % 4,500,000 # 7T 4 -
HKD?7,000,001 to HKD7,500,000 7,000,001 ¥ 7T £ 7,500,000 7T - 1
HKD7,500,001 to HKDS8,000,000 7,500,001 ¥ 7T £ 8,000,000 # 7T 1 -
HKD?8,500,001 to HKD9,000,000 8,500,001 ¥ 7T % 9,000,000 ¥ 7T - 1
5 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any emoluments

during the year.

RN > AR [ A 1) 44 B TN L
(B %5 S R B SCAHETIN S - 15 4
FOMAA G 2 S8 > s o e
A o 4 P Sf7 08 5 AT T M

13. DIVIDENDS 13. BB
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHT 75 NG T
Dividends recognised as EINTER L5 IR 2 1 B

distribution during the year

In 2011, a dividend of USD0.0247 per share amounting to
USD9,801,000 (equivalent to RMB64,441,000) was proposed and
paid to shareholders.

In 2010, a dividend of USD0.0711 per share amounting to
USD28,200,000 (equivalent to RMB191,575,000) was proposed and
paid to shareholders.

The final dividend of RMBO0.0430 (2010: RMBO0.1624) per share has
been proposed by the Company’s directors and is subject to approval

by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

64,441 191,575

20114 BERE IR X E M BRI 2
B 5 4 12.0.0247 9T - 439,801,000
F 0 (A N R 64,441,000 0) »

20104 > #REE IR & C 1 R IR A 2
BB AR 0.0711 3506 » A 3528,200,000
70 (AR AR M 191,575,000 9C) ©

AR ) g AR R 2 R R S
NEH0.0430 7C(20104F © NEH0.1624
TG o M ZE T T R R S T RO A R
EHEUHERR > AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S a B R GR IR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
HBE20114F12 31 H AR
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. #BREA
For continuing and discontinued operations KA FEEH IO LR
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to owners RN AR AR N AL 0B R A
of the Company for the year is based on the following data: FIARSE LN BRI A
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T I NS
Earnings Rl
Earnings for the purposes FAAE T 11 B A= 2 A 2 )
of basic earnings per share 290,178 169,855

R BoE (F %)
FAAE R A B A 2 R 1)
IR ¥4 -8 i 18 # 1,782,192 1,700,000

Earnings per share (RMB cents) (BRI NUNEY )

Number of shares (*000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

for the purpose of basic earnings per share

— Basic — B

For continuing operations
The calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company for the year is based

on the following data:

16.28 9.99

L EEEFE 37
IR AR TR BN 1 5 A2
A AR B MR DA R 5

Earning figures are calculated as follows: BB BT
2011 2010
2011 4¢ 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T o NS B

Earnings Rl
Profit for the year attributable AN T HEA N REAL AF (A5 )

to owners of the Company 290,178 169,855
Less: W
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 4 A & 4% 1F 25 M 548 = (2,207)
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings S A JBERR AR B A T 35 e A8

per share from continuing operations EBHIEA 290,178 172,062

The number of shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share has
been taken into account of weighted average number of new ordinary
shares issued on 22 September 2011 pursuant to the Company’s
Global Offering, and adjusted for the Capitalization Issue (as defined
in Note 32) as if the shares had been issued on 1 January 2010.

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as the Group has no
potential ordinary shares throughout the year ended 31 December 2011
and 2010.

FAVERTH RS A AW R B B 5T
AMIEA N R 2 BREEE R 2011459 H 22
H 85 AT Y38 40 0T B i R~ 34 o > 3
AR EAT CE Z R E32) MR %
MANRZEE A TR 2010461 A 1 H 347 ©

[RI A 45 [ A 4 2 201 14F 52 20104E 12 H 31
H 1k 47 B2 A S5 e VB A S A > Bl ok 2
1|55 R 4 v 2 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR MBS IR R N 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011

BE 2011412 A 31 H L4

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations was
RMBO.13cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2010
based on the loss for the year from the discontinued operations
of RMB2,207,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
denominators, number of shares, used were same as those used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations.
No such information for year ended 31 December 2011 as the

discontinued operation was disposed of on 8 December 2010.

14. TR ER (4)

RHCK I

ELA I BN £ 2010412 H 31 H 1E4E
BE 04 N 48 25 N B 2,207,000 G > 3%
WHHE - D IEEFREE20104F 12 A
31 H Ik AR A B AR B 18 A AR N R
W 0.13 43 o FTEL BT Y 4 B BT S 5R
1 R 40 S 5 1) g TR A 28 R T 66 R 1) B
PYECEAHE - MR ZE 201112 H31H
IEAFEBE 2 Bk - TR 2R 20104E 12 7 8
H s e 40k 267 -

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W3 ~ W Kk i
Fixtures and Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings Machinery equipment vehicles  Improvements in progress Total
KER ik
&4 B L] R ES 1 AN Hit
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR  ARETE  AR®TT  ARETE  ARETR  ARETR ARETX
) Bk
At 1 January 2010 RN0FTA 1R 49,389 31413 26,408 10,710 16404 - 134324
Additions A - 5,068 2,801 7872 3,795 3,581 23,007
Transfer out on disposal LGB
of a subsidiary (Note 35) (Mt 35) - - (982) (615) (9.905) - (11,50
Disposals it - (1) (26) (491) - - (689)
At31 December 2010 R210E 12431 A 49,389 36,309 2891 17476 10294 3,381 145,340
Additions hE - 6,860 5,062 9,007 737 11,103 39,359
Disposals k3 - (163) (575) (1,204) - - (1942)
At31 December 2011 2011231 H 49,389 43,006 30,778 25,079 17,621 14,684 182,757
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 January 2010 R0 TA LA 9322 12,055 16,266 5,792 12,112 - 55,547
Provided for the year Rt 248 3,204 4747 2,601 2047 - 14873
Transfer out on disposal b Al E
of a subsidiary (Note 35) (7t 3s5) - - (715) (591) (9.67) - (10978)
Eliminated on disposals R - (89) (15) (275) - - (379)
At31 December 2010 20104 121311 11570 15,170 20,83 7553 4487 - 59,063
Provided for the year Rt 248 3,669 3,672 298 2753 - 1585
Eliminated on disposals Hh B - 91 (395) (1,004) - - (1490)
At31 December 2011 20112431 H 13818 18748 23,560 9492 740 - 72858
CARRYING VALUES IRt
At31 December 2010 2010512131 37,819 21,139 8,008 9,023 5807 3,381 86,277
At31 December 2011 RE1AA 35,571 2458 9218 15,787 10381 14,684 109,899
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S a B R GR IR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
HBE20114F12 31 H AR
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W3 ~ B Skt (48)
(CONTINUED)
The above items of property, plant and equipment other than - s KA E (g LR
construction in progress are depreciated, after considering their B o) 76 2% B R R E A% > UHELE
residual values, on a straight-line basis at the following rates per iR 5 AR A A B IR (AR ke 3 A 1)
annum: EATITES -
Buildings 4.5% - E3 4.5%
Machinery 9% T 2 9%
Fixtures and equipment 18% e A 18%
Motor vehicles 18% R 18%
Leasehold improvements 18% or over the term of the lease, HEYEEE 18%
whichever is shorter
The Group’s building are located on land in the PRC under medium- A B AL AR T AR A R T B 2 £
term leases. b o
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. HEATH 4
2011 2010
2011 4¢ 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T I PN L T
Cost AR
At beginning and end of the year R AR 21,037 21,037
Accumulated amortisation TS
At beginning of the year )] 4,910 4,526
Amortisation G o 384 384
At end of the year AR 5,294 4910
Carrying amount W T
At end of the year AR 15,743 16,127
Analysed for reporting purposes as: S H R
Current asset (Note 24) TG (it 24) 441 441
Non-current asset IE By G 15,302 15,686
15,743 16,127
The amount represents the lease premium payment for land use rights 5% A R AL R ] ) - H A R RE AR
which is situated in the PRC. Tt is amortised over 50 years and the T AT o 42 SO A7k G S A B 0 B L
amortisation periods is in line with the period of land use rights. o FHRERY SO [ — B -
All of the the Group’s land use right were pledged as at 31 December 7 46 |8 BT A5 M B RE R 2010 4F 12 A
2010 to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group. There is no 31 H T LAERAT > DU AS 42 B A9 AT 6
pledge of the Group’s land use right at 31 December 2011. Koo 2011412 H 31 H » A [ 4 b

JARES SEHEAT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5RO RS R R M
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
BZE 20114512 H 31 HIE4F

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. &YW

2011 2010
2011 4 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T8 ANRHET T

At fair value FAFE
At beginning of the year G0 46,069 44,640
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss  FAE % K1 FERR I/ T-(E 5 B (69) 1,429
At end of the year AR 46,000 46,069

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group’s investment

properties are held under medium-term leases in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2010 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
date by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ”).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2011 has been arrived at by reference to a valuation carried out on 31
July 2011 by DTZ. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair value of the properties at 31 December 2011 is not significantly
different from that at 31 July 2011, since there is no significant change
of the fair value of similar properties in the relevant locations during

the period.

DTZ are independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The valuations were arrived at using direct comparison
method by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for

similar properties in the similar locations and conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

All of the Group’s investment properties have been pledged as
at 31 December 2010 to secure stand-by banking facilities of
RMB100,000,000 granted to the Group. There is no pledge of the

Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2011.

20114512 A31 H20104F12 A31 H >
AR A (B A Fp 1 ) BB ) 2 DA R AR A R
ﬁc

AL EYER20104E12 H31 HW
INTAE E AR AR AT A BR A R ([ # R g
17 1) AT Z Ak (AL B o

AREMMBEWENR20114FE12H31HZA
TED 2 WA RITR 201147 H 31 A
AT AN ETER - ANFIEHT S
YIZER 2011412 A 31 H Z A A EL 2011
731 HZ A EN T KR > T)
H 7 1 TR A B b G 1 AR 2 ) 2E 1 A T
N 4 TR S o

RTEIRAT A B M ML A B R 1) B 5L
% ZEAG(E AT o {5 ()Y 2 BA ) 3EAE
AR A LB B G A 52 5 AR B TiT 455 1
PR T B4 PO T 3

AR A R IBOREL <6 0T 4R A 4 T A ) S
i )G (8 P (E A R R o e AR
I B -

AL E A BE W2 TR 20104E 12 F 31
F G DABRAS A 4 U2 10 4 1 AT
AR 100,000,000 7T © 20114512
A 31H > ARLEEBCE Y N AT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
RZE20114FE12H 31 H 14
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. L& &
Software Franchise fee Total
[igis L X8 ¢ fat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRBETIT PN T PN T

Cost A
At 1 January 2010 A20104E1 H 1 H 2,707 2,788 5,495
Additions NE 407 = 407
Transfer out on disposal of LR AR 2 D IR

a subsidiary (Note 35) (Bt7t 35) (230) (2,788) (3,018)
At 31 December 2010 2010412 431 H 2,884 = 2,884
Additions WE 811 = 811
At 31 December 2011 A20114E12 H31 H 3,695 - 3,695
Amortisation 1 4H
At 1 January 2010 A20104F1H1H 837 2,788 3,625
Charge for the year AR 355 - 355
Transfer out on disposal of L1 AR 2 ) IR i L

a subsidiary (Note 35) (Mt 35) (122) (2,788) (2,910)
At 31 December 2010 2010412 H31 H 1,070 - 1,070
Charge for the year AENSE 435 = 435
At 31 December 2011 2011412 H31H 1,505 = 1,505
Carrying values JI3IOK(EN
At 31 December 2010 2010412 431 H 1,814 = 1,814
At 31 December 2011 A20114E12 431 H 2,190 - 2,190
The following useful lives are used in the calculation of amortisation: TE TG Ry R 2 AT (AR
Software 5 years H A S4F

Franchise fees respective franchise period from 2 to 3 years Higt 2 7 34 A B
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Srfr BTSRRI RE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
BZE 20114512 H 31 HIE4F
19. GOODWILL 19. WE
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T NS B
Amount £
At beginning of the year G0 - 6,000
Derecognised on disposal of HH B — T B 0 R I 1R R
a subsidiary (Note 35) (Mt 35) - (6,000)
At end of the year AEAR - -
Impairment RN
At beginning of the year ) - (6,000)
Derecognised on disposal of t B — T B 0 R IR 4 1 R
a subsidiary (Note 35) (M1t 35) - 6,000
Carrying amount R T {E
At end of the year AER = -
Goodwill on consolidation arose from the acquisition of Jiangsu Unity A B TR L TR 2004 4F i B VI RR [ 45 T 2
in 2004. Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) Ao BB THEMZ 8 EH A2 B
that are expected to benefit from that business combination. Goodwill wEE T ([Bla /LT - BUHE
was derecognised on disposal of Jiangsu Unity in the year ended 31 R E 20104 12 H 31 H IR TR
December 2010. B A5 IR A T o
20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 20. A EEEEHER
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T 0 NS TH
Cost of unlisted investments in AL TE R BHE OF b
jointly controlled entity G A 25,944 23,500
Share of post-acquisition losses 3 IS A% N 1R (18,950) (17,696)
6,994 5,804
The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of the 1P REE i 325 A TR 199 A 4 [ 1 [ 2 T B
Group’s jointly controlled entities which are accounted for using the M4 B SR T T -

equity method is set out below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for e IS R I R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
201 14F12 31 H IL4EE
20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REERFEARES ()
(CONTINUED)
2011 2010
20114 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥E T NS T
Current assets TG 27,447 18,442
Non-current assets IE iy G 2,433 2,470
Current liabilities i B=Y 15,607 9,067
Non-current liabilities FETE) B ] -
Net assets EEFE 14,273 11,845
Group’s share of net assets of A B2 [ 43 A L ] 2 o
jointly controlled entities HEFE 6,994 5,804
Income recognized in profit or loss AR N FERR A 54,437 38,793
Expenses recognized in profit or loss AR g R B 52 57,710 46,302
Other comprehensive income HA A A 714 366
Loss for the year F N (2,559) (7,143)
Group’s share of loss of jointly AR A [ 43 A e ] 428 1
controlled entities R (2,054) (2,996)
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had interest in the RS IIR > AL BRI A8 A S
following joint ventures: AR
Place and date of Principal Proportion of nominal value
Incorporation/ Place of of issued capital and voting
Name of joint venture establishment operation power held by the Group Principal activity
R AL,/ o TEEHE REHBH 2 OH#T
Gl A EYAE i e A B 45 S R -2 b 1 EX =97
2011 2010
20114 20104
B&H Footwear Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 49%* 49%*  Trading
(“Hong Kong B&H™) May 29, 2007 s 5
FREREEARA R ([ FFRE)) i
20074E5 H29H
Held by Hong Kong B&H Dongguan PRC PRC 49%* 49%*  Manufacture and retail
B&H Footwear Industries Limited 23 August 2007 il of branded fashion
(“Dongguan B&H”) i footwear
TRl S R A ROE R 200748123 EEREE
FHIRA R ([HREERHE]) A AR i
* Pursuant to joint-venture agreement, the entities are jointly controlled by the * R AR > 25 ER R AL R

Group and respective joint-venture partners. % B EBEFESE ARG
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e B R R T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
BZE 20114512 H 31 HIE4F
20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REERFERRES (4)
(CONTINUED)
During the year, the Group injected additional capital of RMB RN > AR B ) A v SRR A RHANE AR
2,444,000 to Hong Kong B&H. N M2,444,000 7T ©
21. DEFERRED TAXATION 21. ESEHIIAH
The following are the deferred tax balances recognised by the Group DA 2 74 S 30 e 58 1) 40 SE A T 4 ik M L
and movements thereon during the year: SETN )
Withholding ~ Revaluation
Unrealized Write tax on of
profit in down of Tax Deferred undistributed  investment
inventories  inventories losses income profits  properties Total
KB
FEAEH 8 Hil B
Al M REEE BERA Mk REWE A
RMB’000 ~ RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBFL ARBFE ARBFL AR¥FE AR®FL AREFC AREFL
At 1 January 2010 201041 H1H - 6,690 68 - (3,021) (2,702) 1,035
Credit (charge) to profitorloss 7T AJB & (HIB&IER) - 1,019 278 2,145 (979) (357) 2,106
At 31 December 2010 20104 12431 H - 7,709 346 2,145 (4,000) (3,059) 3,141
Credit (charge) to profitor loss s AJRE (HIBLE IR 5473 447 113 1,023 (2,7194) 17 4279
At 31 December 2011 R20014ERA3H 5473 8,156 459 3,168 (6,794) (3,042) 7,420
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial DUR 25 2 BA B i B B R A BLIE A 7 2
reporting purposes: I3
2011 2010
2011 4% 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETI6 NRBT T

Deferred tax assets R SIE T 17,256 10,200
Deferred tax liabilities R STl T £ A (9,836) (7,059)
7,420 3,141
Under the EIL Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared HEIRAS SEFT S BIE - 5 o B B 2 w4t
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries that are received by 2008 4F 1 1 H R B Ik g e R AR S P i
non-PRC resident entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred TR 3 1) B DR BB RO TR AT B - AR AL
tax liability has been provided for distributable profits which were T AR T RT3 IR ik R A4 > T
determined according to the dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries. R T R 5 AR v I A R A T 2 I R B R
fiEE °
The Group has unused tax losses of RMB1,833,000 as at 31 A20114E12 31 H » ARLEE KRS R
December 2011 (2010: RMB1,384,000). Deferred tax assets have JE B R 5 N R 1,833,000 96 © i~ 2011 4F
been recognised in respect of RMB1,833,000 of such losses as at 31 12A31H > Bt NR%1,833,000 CH) 7%

December 2011 (2010: RMB1,384,000). TH R s R A B TH & 2 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S E B R GR T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
201 14F12 31 H IL4EE
22. INVENTORIES 22. #88
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T8 ANRHET T
Raw materials M Rt 41,766 27,589
Work in progress e i 15,019 9,575
Finished goods A 537,605 403,938
594,390 441,102
Allowance of inventories obsolescence RS A7 B 1 (32,550) (30,839)
561,840 410,263
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. 5 WK H
2011 2010
2011 4% 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥TFt UNEL BT
Amounts receivable from sales of goods B 15 R i 243,555 179,930
The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days for collection AR AR B 52 5 ECGK T A% T4 60 R Y
of the trade receivables. The following is an aged analysis of trade EEH - DUT 7% B 5 eSO IE A 4R 5 )
receivables, presented based on the invoice date at the end of the ARAEHE S H 250 Ry BREE 73 A

reporting period.

2011 2010
2011 4F 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHTou AT

0 to 60 days 0% 60K 237,283 177,688
61 to 180 days 61 X% 180 Kk 5,664 1,191
181 days to 1 year 181 RZE 14F 565 464
Over 1 year A 1A 43 587
Amounts receivable from sales of goods BE BB 2 ECRIE 243,555 179,930
At 31 December 2011, 97% (2010: 99%) of the trade receivables that R2011F12H31H > &5 YK IE
are neither past due nor impaired. No impairment loss is provided for 97% (20104F = 99%) BE 4 44 Hi 7 4 Yk
these receivables because they are within the credit period granted (B o 79 5% 55 M AC K T MR 06 H V(s 4R
to the respective customer and the management considers the default M > T R TR & F AR (R
rate is low for such receivables based on historical information and BN R L R Ry o AR A R
experience. Fo B8 B - %55 MRS IE 1 72 R S A %

{98
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

23. B 5 MEWOK A (4)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with a
carrying amount of RMB6,272,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
RMB2,242,000), which were past due for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality of respective debtors and the amounts are still

considered recoverable.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

A% 42 [ 4 5 IEMACHCIEL  AEL 355 7 2011 4F 12
H 31 H AR (E 5 A K H 6,272,000 701 FE
WEKIE - HLE R - AR 48 18 4 T
WE R R > T H i A5 (8 IR JE Y
{55 BR300 4 T R B B B % R AR
Sy AT fal o

38 U1 SR DAL 4 B o I MRk L R

2011 2010

20114 2010 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET 0 ANR¥Foo

61 to 180 days 61 K£E 180 K 5,664 1,191
181 days to 1 year 181 K% 14F 565 464
Over 1 year A 1A 43 587
Amounts receivable from sales of goods B B i R R OE 6,272 2,242

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. In
determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since
the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. After reassessment,

the directors believe that no allowance is required.

Details of the Group’s trade receivables denominated in USD are as

follows:

A AR 1 35 5% 4 A B I 0 5 A AT A I
Al o TE 5 5E B2 55 M SR IE IS Al i (e
[RF - A< S ) B 1 B0 0 B WAL | 42 A
FEDUAS J 2 ek HRY A5 508 R 0 A AT
SEW) o FEEMTAFAE 1R o SRR M AUE
A -

RS B L) 35 R 0 25 MM SR A
W

2011 2010

2011 4 2010 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T PNRL: s BT

Trade receivables denominated in USD DL SETERHE 1) E 5 HE YR T 28,627 18,646
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OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24, oA Wik JE B LAk K
PREPAYMENTS
2011 2010
2011 4F 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T NG T
Advance payments to suppliers T (44 R T A S 27,340 7,189
Value-added tax receivable JE W b (B ol 11,564 2,839
Prepayments FAfTER 15,136 22,500
Prepayments for expenses related to the Listing L7 AH B BH =2 FE A5 3 IH - 3,455
Prepaid lease payments (Note 16) TS (MfiE16) 441 441
Amount due from joint ventures JE G A K 347 189
Others HAth 2,502 1,747
Total &t 57,330 38,360

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

25. W BIE

2011 2010
20114 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt AR¥T T

Unlisted investment funds, at fair value FEEHRERS > WA TE 75,611 -

At 31 December 2011, the investment amounts represent units in
investments funds managed by an investment fund manager which
invests solely in listed equities trading in stock exchanges in Hong
Kong, Japan and Taiwan. The investment manager is obliged to
purchase from the Group such investment units at the quoted price
provided by the investment fund manager which is determined based
on the net asset and total units of the investment funds. The fair value
of the investment funds is based on unit price quoted by investment
fund manager with reference to certain market value statements
showing the net asset value of the investment funds at the end of the

reporting period.

R201145E12 A 31 H > & &5 0
s~ HAR KB5S 5 T bl
JBe 15 2 3 T 4 S T T A e
ST o BEHI A TR A K
T IRAEAS (TIARE IR B I & 2 B E T
(B K% B 4B S ) ) A AR A % 5%
PG AL - BE IS A TET R ER
A SR IR 45 R A 0 11 R 4 SRR AR
F B GV 2 T AR I 2 B
PfERS o
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26. STRUCTURED BANK DEPOSITS 26. HikETESRAT K
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T8 ANRHET T
Structured bank deposits HEMEPESRAT AKX 67,000 -
At 31 December 2011, the amount represents the Group’s Australian A20114E 12 A31 H » ZESBRALH
Dollar (“AUD”)/USD currency linked structured bank deposits ] — I ERAT ([ 4RAT ) A7 A — A AR A4
(“CSBDs”) placed by the Group to a bank (the “Bank”) for a term of IR T (TG ),/ FEon &R e At
one year. Pursuant to the relevant underlying agreements, the CSBDs SRATAEAN ([ WA SR SR T/ ) ©
carry fixed interest rates at 3.4% or 5.3% per annum the exchange HR AT T AH B 1 ok - £ W 0 5 5 R 1 8
rate fluctuation of AUD/USD during the investment period and its FTAF AT 1 G W MR G 38 o0 HE S5 )
principal sum denominated in RMB of 67,000,000 is guaranteed by the W42 1541 3.4% B8, 5.3% 14 [ 2 R 67t B I
Banks. The fair value of the embedded derivative as at 31 December H LA B HTHE 67,000,000 7619 A8 4 42 4R
2011 is insignificant. ZESRATIELR - A 2011 4F 12 H31 H > ik
A TR AR ASE K o
27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 27. CiRRITE R
Pledged bank deposits of the Group represents deposits pledged AR A [ O HE AT ERAT A7 SR 1 b R A 2 0%
to banks as securities of notes payables and carries interest rate as ) KA1V R T SR AT Y A7 3I 4 DL R
follows: FHE
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T NS
Interest rate per annum SRS 3.1%-3.3% 1.91%-2.20%
28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 28. MATHIER M BlE

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less which carried interest
at market rates from 0.0001% to 0.50% per annum at 31 December
2011 (2010: from 0.0001% to 0.36% per annum).

The Group’s bank balances and cash that were denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

SRAT SR S 3 & AL B A R A FI )
HZ=MH A s bl 2 IR fE k> o
S HTE R 2011 4F 12 A 31 H & 544+ F
0.0001% % 0.50%(20104F : 454£0.0001%
F0.36%) TG AR

ARG T DA I 4 R S e W DAY
BWERHE R SRAT R B B BRI T
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28. SRATAVER KBl (4H)

2011 2010
2011 4 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET I N o
Denominated in: FHEAL
USD ESTH 5,990 15,814
SGD EED)IE ST 489 2,769
HKD o 3,834 14,165
TRADE PAYABLES 29. ® 5 EAT 3K IH
2011 2010
2011 4 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET I N o
Trade payables for purchases M= EERE S
of goods from third parties JEAS 4288 110,005 158,904
Notes payable JEAT 225 14,589 33,784
Amounts due to joint ventures JEAT G Ak IE 9,353 4,473
Total a5 133,947 197,161

Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases.

Payment terms with suppliers are mainly on credit within 90 days from

B oy HE A SR LA 5 R SEAT 19 B2 5 W
ARIH o BERERR 2 (5 B T A f

the invoice date. The aging of trade payables is as follows: 5 A IREEE 90 AT K o B 5 REAT SRIE Y
RIS -
2011 2010
2011 4¢ 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHT o8 ANR¥T T
Age MR

0 to 90 days 0190 K 122,840 181,846
91 to 180 days 91 K% 180 K 11,107 15,040
181 to 1 year 181 K#| 14F - 105
Over 1 year B 1 AR - 170
133,947 197,161
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29. TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 29. ® 5 MEAT K IE (4)

A G L3R T (A B 42 1R R AR )
AU H R R AR FEF

The Group’s trade payables that were denominated in USD, foreign

currency of the relevant group entities, were re-translated into RMB

and stated for reporting purposes as: T
2011 2010
2011 48 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
UNCH & PNRL o T
Trade payables denominated in USD DL ITCRHE N B 5 FE AT IE 2,313 -

30. OTHER PAYABLES 30. - fth e A sk JE
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T o NS
Accruals JE=EE T 15,240 6,968
Advance from customers PG 11,442 8,851
Payroll payable JEAT & 38,398 37,063
Other tax liabilities HABBLIH A & 14,138 16,408
Deposit from wholesale customers HeHE % P 4% 4 10,793 11,622
Payable for decoration S E A OB 9,417 7,709
Others HoAth 15,018 6,850
114,446 95,471
31 DEFERRED REVENUE 31. BHEEUWA
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET I PNRL o R
Deferred revenue arising from HEESEF B EA 2
customer loyalty programme, IEAEUT AT R

shown as current liabilities Rl B =L 12,672 8,581

FA20104F 2011412 H31 H » % &%
TEARIE R M A B S R R B g 13 9%
[% 5 B s #] ] iR AR L& P 8
A S S A R AL A o

At 31 December 2010 and 2011, the amount represents deferred
revenue arising in respect of the Group’s customer loyalty programme
recognised in accordance with IFRIC-Int 13 “Customer Loyalty

Programmes”.
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. kA
Number of ordinary
shares of USD(.015 each Amount
IR {E 0.015 %70
A yiillie g Kot
USD’000
T35
Authorised: HIE
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 201011 H ~
20104F 12 H31H 800,000,000 12,000
Shares increased (note 1) JB ¥ (HfEE 1) 19,200,000,000 288,000
At 31 December 2011 JA20114E 12 H31H 20,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: CE TR -
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 JA20104E 1 H 1 H -
20104F 12 H31H 396,868,200 5,953
Shares issued under the Capitalisation R E A AT T 2
Issue (note 1) Rty (fitaE 1) 1,303,131,800 19,547
Shares issued under the Global 2RI T2
Offering (note 2) Rty (M7 2) 300,000,000 4,500
At 31 December 2011 2011412 431 H 2,000,000,000 30,000
Shown in the consolidated statement of A SRS BRI R TR
financial position
At 31 December 2010 ®20104F 12 31 H 49,271
At 31 December 2011 FA2011 412 31 H 202,087
Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry a right to T B 9 e B A — {1 A S
dividends. AREREEE I -
Note 1:  Pursuant to written resolution passed on 26 August 2011, BfFak 1 AR 201145 8 H 26 H s 2 F i ek
=
(i) The authorised share capital of the company was increased (i) 753 18 5 A 51 19,200,000,000
from USD12,000,000 to USD300,000,000 by the creation of an BT A 0.015 FE B2 ey > A
additional 19,200,000,000 shares of USD0.015 each; 23 T A E AR 112,000,000 3678
97 300,000,000 257
(i) A sum of USD19,546,977 standing to the credit of the share () A A 0 RN A 3t
premium account of the Company was capitalised and applied in 19,546,977 %GB A - I HAE
paying up in full at par 1,303,131,800 shares of USD0.015 each AT IR AN R R 58 BRUAE B
allotted and issued upon completion of listing the shares of the 5 W 22 BT b T R TG R R BT 2
Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Capitalisation 1,303,131,800 /it 4 fit 1 {5 0.015
Issue”). FToZ ety ([EAICEEAT) -
Note 2:  On 22 September 2011, the Company issued 300,000,000 new ordinary Bifak2 © R20114E9 H 22 H » AR EHEA @)
shares pursuant to the Company’s Global Offering at a price of HK$2.3 2 BREEE R 2.3 W oT (FHAE I AN RV
(equivalent to RMB1.88) per share, details of which are set out in the 1.88 76) Z {E 4% %547 300,000,000 i 5
Company’s Prospectus dated 12 September 2011. A SR A F B 2011 4R 9

H12 HZ Bt -
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33.

34.

PRC STATUTORY RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC applicable
to foreign investment enterprises and the Articles of Association of
the PRC subsidiaries, the PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain
a statutory surplus reserve fund. Appropriations to this fund are
made out of net profit after taxation as reported in the PRC statutory
financial statements of the subsidiaries u(the “PRC Accounting
Profit”).

Nanjing Mayflower, Dongguan Mayflower, Nanjing Soft, Nanjing
Ruihe and Jiangsu Unity (as defined in Note 42) are required to
transfer 10% of their PRC Accounting Profit to the statutory surplus
reserve fund in each profit making year until the balances reach 50%
of the registered capital of each of the company respectively. The
statutory surplus reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with approval from relevant government authority, to

increase capital.

Suining Shufute is not required to maintain this statutory surplus
reserve fund, according to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC

applicable to Sino-foreign joint investment enterprises.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to a share option scheme of the Company (the “Hongguo
Singapore Share Option Scheme”) approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company in June 2008, the Company may grant options to
eligible employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares in the Company for a consideration of SGD 1
for each lot of share options granted. The share options granted shall
be exercisable, in whole or in part, after the third anniversary of the
date of grant until the fifth anniversary and tenth anniversary of such
date of grant for the group of non-executive directors and the group
comprising executive directors, management staffs and department
heads (this group is collectively referred to as the “Group Executives”)

respectively.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
based on the average closing price of the Company’s shares previously
listed on the SGX-ST for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant.

The Company granted options to the non-executive directors and the
Group Executives on 23 June 2008 (the “2008 Option”) and on 18
August 2009 (the “2009 Option”) respectively.

33.

34.

H B ¥ S fh

R0 o A1 T 5 e P 04 B
A - o B 2 LR o O
A 1 B e R 25 7 o B
e 2 A BLEE AR (T o B A D)
SIS =X S

B R BEEE - RSER B - B AP
R~ R R A KT AR T A (R 28 LR RE
42) ZE 7 A1 L ) AF BN o o i
FIRY 10% B3 2 05 2 B BRI 2 & - |
ZEHEERO IE A A R RE MR A B9 50% o
15 78 T 0 {5 4 2 < T RE T A T4 L AR
B R > RS A BB R R A
HE T I AS -

R v B v A A S T P A B
BB o MESEET IRRR MR Ak R UL I L 8
BRI -

VLB 2 35 WRE 0 32 )
HR A A 25 ) # 5 € it 2008 4F 6 H HLHER

— TEUAR N ) PR G )L 05 g
JRMERT ] 1) > AL AT AR 2N R R HE R
J& o> ) EAR R E S A I RORE
DARBIEEAS 2y ) ey > ARME o B 1 AR
FEHEE 1B TE o T4 L) 1 B P A T
5 F A 3 AR AL & H AR AT
P> B A 1 AT E F R AL R AR
freEds - B RLE B TR M R a4
REALN B (RCREAL A0S & [ 4R [0 AR
B 1) & B RS TR S R AR SR AR
BEH

AN T HE AR S HA B 2T BT A
O ) Ry B H AT TR S H Y
SP-Eg i f e

ALEE 43 A 2008 4F- 6 A 23 H (12008 4F:
WEREAE 1) S 2009 48 H 18 H ([2009 4T 1§
JBCHE 1) ) FE 04T 7 3 A1 L v SRk 2L A2
th T HE o



-117-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5RO MBS ER R N 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
2 20114E12H 31 H IE4F R

34. VARt 2 FE B B4 3 A5 (#)
LR L 80 e 3 24 ) 3

Wit G > 7] 04T o 2 R 4 v AR B P
HAY 2008 4EIAHE K 2009 4 WA HEFENE #51)

subsidiaries were as follows: b1

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
Details of the 2008 Option and 2009 Option granted under the

Hongguo Singapore Share Option Scheme to the non-executive

directors and the Group Executives of the Company and its

Fair value
Exercise of option at
Option type Date of grant Exercise period price grant date
Vi e
=i H
Vi 5 HEE 5 26 i H B A7 08 3 1] A7 Z N PE
SGD SGD
g oo LT
2008 Option
2008 4F i HE
Non-executive directors 23.06.2008 23.06.2011 ~22.06.2013 0.453 0.19
FRATHE 200846 7 23 A 20114F6 423 HE 201346 22 H
Group Executives 23.06.2008 23.06.2011 ~22.06.2018 0.453 0.24
ST S AR B 200846 H 23 H 201146 H23 HE 201846 H22 H
2009 Option
2009 4F: Hii B A
Non-executive directors 18.08.2009 18.08.2012 ~ 17.08.2014 0.272 0.12
FATHESE 200948 H 18 H 201248 H 18 HE 201448 H17 H
Group Executives 18.08.2009 18.08.2012 ~ 17.08.2019 0.272 0.12

S R AR B

20094E8 H 18 H

201248 H 18 H#20194E8 H 17 H

HRPEBUY LT > 2008 4E BEBAE ~ 2009 4F
I PG R % 2 ) I o B R )
2010 4 FEEH o 5T 87195 BT 3k B Je A 51
B F it B A I 15 A i 3
FA 5T 3 [ DA Ho At Oy SAHERR W & B B R
2010 FFAEFFHERD. -

Pursuant to the Delisting, the 2008 Option, 2009 Option and together
with the Hongguo Singapore Share Option Scheme were cancelled
in 2010. The cancellation of the Hongguo Singapore Share Option
Scheme was accounted for as an acceleration of vesting, and the
amount that otherwise would have been recognised over the remainder

of the vesting period has been recognised in 2010.

T A R AR R I T g S 4%
H B AR 2L m R LI S R JE AT
e S5 1) i A A T 1 4 S R A AR
FWEBCAERY 52 )

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options granted under the Hongguo Singapore Share Option Scheme
held by the non-executive directors and the Group Executives of the

Company and its subsidiaries during both years.
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

34. DABAR 2 LB 6 S AF (48

Number of

share options

Cancelled  Outstanding Exercisable at

2008 Option Outstanding during at31.12.2010  31.12.2010,
granted to at 1.1.2010 2010 &31.12.2011 & 31.12.2011
20104 R 20104F
#2010 4F 12A31HE 12H31HK
1A1H 20114 20114
2008 4 [ HE AATREAR 20104  12H31H 12H31H
BFUTAL TR B B kS AT [SX L
Non-executive directors FEHATEDS 300,000 (300,000) - -
Group Executives AR = R 5,662,500 (5,662,500) - -
5,962,500 (5,962,500) - -

Number of
share options Cancelled  Outstanding Exercisable at
2009 Option Outstanding during at31.12.2010  31.12.2010,
granted to at 1.1.2010 2010 &31.12.2011 & 31.12.2011
H20104F  FA20104F
#2010 4F 12A3IHE 12H31HK
1H1H 20114 20114
2009 4F- i b ARATRECA 20104F  12A31H 12H31H
BTUTFAL i R B [Bhs | i ARAT oA
Non-executive directors FEPATE S 300,000 (300,000) - -
Group Executives A1 v R B 5,767,000 (5,767,000) - -
6,067,000  (6,067,000) - -

These fair values of the share options were determined using the
Black-Scholes pricing model. Where relevant, the expected life
used in the model has been adjusted based on management’s best
estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility was based on the

historical share price volatility over the previous 4 years.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options were based on the director’s best estimate. The
value of an option varied with different variables of certain subjective

assumptions.

S 1Y 5% 568 - (L6 P A1 206 e 7 7 2%
FE MR RE o WARRR - Bl 1 i
TE D47 30) AR 42 A T S T A
A8 B ) e AT o AR A B R A R o 3
HE o TR T AR AR 1 4 1R 4F E O
TR A D W

P B 2 S P ) T E PR 3R B AR
T AR B 1) B LR AL AR i o T
AT (B T T2 BB B ) AN T] T R 26
A B -
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The inputs into the model were as follows:

2 20114E12H 31 H IE4F R

34. DA A 7 BB 04 S AF (48

B A2 8T

Expected

Grant date  Exercise Expected dividend Risk-free Expected

share price

price volatility yield rate life

2 A TR TR T
| ATOEAE EUMBOE R b= AEHA
SGD SGD Years
BT Hmkoe 4
2008 Option 2008 4T i i
Non-executive directors FTHESE 0.46 0453  53.0%  1.97%  2.26%
Group Executives LA B 0.46 0453 53.0%  1.97%  3.14% 10
2009 Option 2009 4 I R HE
Non-executive directors FEHATES 0.28 0272 69.0%  2.45%  3.13% 3
Group Executives ST S AR B 0.28 0272 69.0%  2.45%  3.13% 3

The Group recognised RMB7,502,000 share option expense for the
year ended 31 December 2010. No such expense was recognised in the
year ended 31 December 2011 as all share options were cancelled in
2010.

Pursuant to written resolution passed on 26 August 2011, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (the “Hongguo Hong Kong
Share Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in “Report of
the Directors — Share Option Scheme” to the annual report. No share
option has been granted under the Hongguo Hong Kong Share Option

Scheme since its adoption.

AL E A E 2010412 H 31 H 14
B 15 B S N R 7,502,000 7T © FH Y
BT B RE R 2010 4 518 > B 2011 4F
12 A 31 H 47 B SRR A2 TE B S -

MR R 2011468 A 26 H 48 i A 18
TS o AN TR AN — TEUE () i R RE S
(8 20 5 85 I R R T 3 ) > LR b
AR TIE Sl — BB o AR
PRAN LA 5 AR5 6 [ A 78 B T A 1 ) Sl
AT TR
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35. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to a transfer agreement dated 8 December 2010, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interests in Jiangsu Unity, which carried
out all of the Group’s retail and wholesale of international and
domestic branded apparel operations, toif[s] & 2 5 A R/ 7
Hongguo Industry Group Corporation (“Hongguo Industry”) with a
cash consideration of RMB34,550,000. Hongguo Industry is an entity

in which certain directors of the Company have controlling interests.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost were as

follows:

5. i E B JE 2 W

RIE20104 12 A 8 H 2 —{3fE ik
A B2 1) 1) 055 ) B S 4 T A PR A W (T 35 [
B HETARE L 2 AR
o8 7 B4 N R 34,550,000 7C < 35 R
HERARNTLG T HEEEA RS
B -

TR LRI E & K B BT

As at
8 December 2010
R20104 128 A

RMB’000
ARHT T
Net assets disposed of: O Hh A5 A A M
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R Bl 558 131
Trade and other receivables & B Ho A RE R TR 21,935
Inventories T 13,523
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) W ~ W Bkt (Mt 15) 524
Intangible assets (Note 18) IV &G (ML 18) 108
Trade and other payables 5 T HoAth AT 3E (1,665)
Net assets disposed of E N EEIRE 34,556
Loss on disposal recognised and CLHERR MO 1R 45 AR Y 5 1R
charged to profit or loss (6)
Total consideration A 34,550
Satisfied by: AT
Cash consideration BaenmE 34,550
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HR B IR A A B TR TR
Cash consideration 4 CE 34,550
Bank balances and cash disposed of B SRAT A iR ML (131)
34,419

The impact of Jiangsu Unity on the Group’s results and cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2010 is disclosed in Note 11.

VAR B 45 3 AR 2 BRI ZE 2010 4F 12 H 31
H R4 B (0 248 K B4 O B 1) 52 288 A
A 11 NHEE ©
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OPERATING LEASE 36. REHE
The Group as leasee AR EAE R R AN
2011 2010
2011 4 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥E T ANRET 5T
Minimum lease payments paid under GRINP IS St A nlib)
operating leases in the year AR A 3K 21,180 18,105

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has outstanding
commitment in respect of non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows:

A IR > A S T 2 10K AR 9 A T
e RS BRI T -

2011 2010

2011 4 20104

RMB’000 RMB’000

A R¥E T8 INEL S TH

Within one year —FER 15,847 11,225
In the second to fifth years inclusive W R AR

(B E R mT) 50,506 34,138

After five years AR 123,142 61,963

Total A% 189,495 107,326

K R R R A B R S M
T A RO AL o R T R E
B A S ) AEL A B A 4 T LR PR 00 il 4
P 2 A R 2 W AR R AR Y

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable by the Group
for its rental of factory premises and retail outlets. Leases and rentals
for the factory premises and retail outlets are negotiated and fixed

for terms ranging from ten to twenty years and one to two years

respectively. JE o
37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. BAKWE
2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ Tt PN T
Capital expenditure in respect of the ERTHIE M R IR SR A
acquisition of property, plant and WES B 2 -
equipment contracted for but 75 5 3 A AL 1 A TR

not provided in the consolidated

financial statements 1,509 10,085
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B2 20114F 12 7 31 H IL4EE
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. B2 5
(1) Related party transactions 1 RS
During the year, in addition to those disclosures in Note 11, 12, N BREE R 12020 24
20, 24, 29, 34 and 35, the Group had the following related party 29~ 34 K 35N Z P E RN > A
transactions: LEWEB ST -
2011 2010
2011 4 20104F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T PNRL o R
Continuing related party FHEBI S S
transactions:
Rental expense paid to Hongguo T 906 8 B 4 S A T AL 4 B S
Industry 900 900
Purchase of goods from H SR5E 3 R R T
Dongguan B&H 35,165 26,644
Rental income charged to 1] SR 5E 3 FEMCOR A9 FEL 4 A
Dongguan B&H = 71

Guarantee executed by certain directors A</ H] %5 T3 F5 5k A 48 [ %
of the Company to banks for banking ZERAT R ) SRAT SR A O

facilities granted to the Group - 100,000
(2) Compensation of key management personnel 2) FEEHABHH
The remuneration of directors, who are also the key SR EEEHE NS NN HE
management, are disclosed in Note 12. ABEE 12 N3 #E -
39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 39. Kk
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged AR R E E AR TR LU
to banks for notes payables. T IEA 4 o
2011 2010
2011 4¢ 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARHET T

Bank deposits RATAF K 14,589 33,784
Investment properties id<vES — 46,069
Land use rights - b A A - 16,127

14,589 95,980




40.

41.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011
BE20114F12H 31 HIEFE

IR P A st

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government, the
PRC subsidiaries have participated in a central pension scheme (the
“Scheme”) operated by local municipal government whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute 18% of basic salaries of the
employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the PRC
subsidiaries. The only obligation of the PRC subsidiaries with respect
to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under
the Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme are

charged to profit or loss as incurred.

During the reporting period, the total amounts contributed by
the Group to the Scheme and charged to profit or loss represent
contribution payable to the Scheme by the Group at rates specified in

the rules of the Scheme and are as follows:

40.

R B U PR A B > o R
F 2 e T BUR R AR ) P R PR
FE# (TR a8 )) > JRut > A B Mg &
FZE R B SR A T Y 18% Bk T %t
# o LAR HOBIRRR R PRI g o T
U AR R I B A B e s R B &
RACBIREE B 1R AR FI AR o
Y S 2 0 A o ) — ST R R AR
A5 bt IR B o AR B
H B BRSO E A IR I R AR T IR o

TR A ST TH] > A< S I % 3 A 4R
SR A AR L 0 ER ) e R AR [ %
2w HIHL R G G Y EE R AT R A 1
BB LT

2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHT I8 NERHET T
Amount contributed and charged to O bR & Bt 4R
profit or loss 19,182 18,884

As at 31 December 2011, there was no outstanding contributions
payable to the Scheme (2010: nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PREIOD

Acquisition of subsidiary/business

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 January 2012 entered into among
Mega Brilliant International Limited (“Mega Brilliant”), Best Invent,
13 investors of Mega Brilliant, Best Invent obtained a 51% interests in
Mega Brilliant at an aggregate cash consideration of RMB51,000,000.
The transaction was completed on 2 February 2012. Mega Brilliant is
a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong as a holding
company. Mega Brilliant has one subsidiary VL3555 # 34 RA
], which is a limited liability company established in the PRC and is
engaged in the design, manufacture and sales of leather products and
textile. Mega Brilliant was acquired so as to continue the expansion on

women’s footwear operation of the Group.

41.

2011412 A 31 H > BEME G R (B8 1Y E
£t 3k 2010 48« 4E)

Hed W12 R

Wi B O 2 A 3

R 9§ i220124F 1 A 1 H Mega Brilliant
International Limited ([ Mega
Brilliant]) ~ Best Invent Z [H] 5] 3. 2 —
JH 1t #% > Mega BrilliantZ 13 % & &
M Best Invent Dk 3 4 A8 AL 40 A ¥
51,000,000 JCHLf% Mega Brilliant 2 51%
HELE o WA SR 201242 A 2 H S8 A »
Mega Brilliant 2 i 75 #5 5= il 57 2 452 i
NHEZAABRTE] o Mega Brilliant A —
RS A R VLAR B R E A BRA A » 3%
O B 7 v B T I A BR T AT A D R A
2R T KT 2 T~ AR
£ o Mega Brilliant # i D4 4 1% e A
e L 1B B o
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41. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE 41. o W% 250 (4)
REPORTING PREIOD (CONTINUED)
Acquisition of subsidiary/business (continued) R P i 2 W, 2 (1)
Consideration transferred PR AR
RMB’000
NG TH
Cash Bl 51,000
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition are as TR H O RERR 0 R R B ITE
follows:
RMB’000
PNRL S BT
Net assets recognised: TR S AR
Property, plant and equipment W~ WE 1,348
Inventories Peacy 11
Other receivables HoAth E S H 13,800
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R Bl 58 74,507
Other payables HoAh A 3K I (891)
88,775
The fair value of other receivables at the date of acquisition amounted TP UACHRE T SU £0 JHA JE SCRR I A
to RMB13,800,000. The gross contractual amounts of the other 13,800,000 76 = FT Ui i A9 JH At B Wi
receivables acquired amounted to RMB13,800,000. IR G #) A B N R 13,800,000
It e
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WA P AR 2 T
RMB’000
ANRHTIT
Consideration transferred HCRAC S 51,000
Plus: non-controlling interests (49%) s FEEERHE RS (49%) 43,500
Less: recognized amounts of net B P E E E E  COERR R
assets acquired (88,775)

Goodwill arising on acquisition W 2R 2 T 5,725
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for e MBS R I R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2011

41. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PREIOD (CONTINUED)

Acquisition of subsidiary/business (continued)
The non-controlling interests (49%) in Mega Brilliant recognised at
the acquisition date was measured at the proportionate share of net

assets acquired.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Mega Brilliant because of the
benefit of further market development of Mega Brilliant. The benefit is
not recognized separately from goodwill because it does not meet the

recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected to be

deductible for tax purpose.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Mega Brilliant

BE20114F12H 31 HIEFE
41. 5 MR EIE ()

Wi B Y I 2 1 3 (4D

AU B HIERR 2 it Mega Brilliant 2 JF
T2 MR HE 2 (49% ) 42 T WA I 4 TR L P T
Sy lEr & o

Wi Mega Brilliant 7 A= 728 i ] 7 52 2
A Mega Brilliant (W3 E— L i 5 -
IR R i SIS R B ERD - T G
SEARFF G AT R M R A R R R

TS FE AR 2 B S e e BB A T
TERFFOHL -

Wi i Mega Brilliant < B4 i ) 1546

RMB’000
ANRHET T
Cash consideration paid O Bl A 51,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent W TR Bl R B AR E Y A5 R
balances acquired (37,999)
13,001

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2011, total group
profit for the year would has been RMB284,453,000. The pro-forma
information is for illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily an
indication of results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January

2011, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

WA 2011451 A 1 H 2 iEFHIH > R
42 B i F) B8 By N R 284,453,000 JT
5% EORMEE R - RO RRAE
B [0 2 il RS 2E AN i i
JHIA20114F 1 H 1 HERE » HIRAHES &
LS v il
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42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. FHJE 2w E A
Place/Country
of incorporation/ Issued and Attributable
establishment fully paid share/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operations registered capital of the Company Principal activities
AL B BETR
Y& gl BUSRIEA AR TIEN
Wi 2~ ) 4 s/ BR FEH A JBeA A4 FEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
Held by the Company:
KA TR
Best Invent BVI United States Dollar 100% 100%  Investment holding
FRETRES UsD 2 B
e
2%t
Best Value BVI USD2 100% 100%  Investment holding
SRS 26T and marketing and
sales agent
B IR BT A
T
Allied Great Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollar 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRI A RAR ik HKD 1 BB
1%
China Ease Hong Kong HKD 1 100% 100%  Investment holding

A AR i 17 Eid el
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42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. FHE 2 Wl REG (4)
(CONTINUED)
Place/Country
of incorporation/ Issued and Attributable
establishment fully paid share/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operations registered capital of the Company Principal activities
st W BEITR
TogiE RUS R A A R
i VNEA s/ EE FE A At i FEEH
2011 2010
20114 20104
Held by subsidiaries of the Company:
A wI B A R A
Mayflower (Nanjing) Enterprise PRC USD 28,500,000 100% 100%  Retail sale of
Limited (“Nanjing Mayflower”) 1 28,500,000 G branded fashion
(note (1) and (4)) footwear
FRHERE () AR T R
(TR ERE]) (WH)LE)
Dongguan Mayflower Footwear PRC USD 1,000,000 100% 100%  Contract
Corporation Limited Hr 1,000,000% ¢ manufacture and
(“Dongguan Mayflower”) (note (1)) sale of branded
WL BRI A fashion footwear
(TREEEBE]) (7t (1) BEEEY S
547
Nanjing Soft (note (1) and (5)) PRC USD 10,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and
AT Hil] 10,500,000 75 sale of branded
Mzt & (5) fashion footwear
and related materials
M B R
LI SH B R
Suining Shufute Shoes Co., Ltd. PRC USD 5,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and
(“Suining Shufute”) i 5,000,0003 7C sale of branded
(note (2) and (6)) fashion footwear
M T A EREARAT and related materials
(THRMTHEED (H3E2) & (6) PR TE T B B R
BEE B A B R
Nanjing Ruihe Trade Co., Ltd. PRC RMB 20,000,000 100% 100%  Property investment
(“Nanjing Ruihe”) (note (3)) i R 20,000,000 /ESIa

HEAU R A PR
(TR E A ) (it 3))
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A 20114F 12 7 31 H IL4EE
=7 20 e
42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. FitJ& 2wl aE A (48D

(CONTINUED)

Notes: BT

(1) wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC (1) A ST A A B A

2) sino-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC 2) A RS 2 R AME AR

(3)  domestic enterprise established in the PRC (3)  APEENLZ N E AR

) Pursuant to the approvals dated 10 October 2011 and 11 November 2011 (4) MR R AR B R 20114F 10 10 H
issued by The People’s Government of Nanjing, the registered capital of J20114F 11 7 11 H g it > mio
Nanjing Mayflower was increased from USD 18,000,000 to USD28,500,000. T HE 11 55 1 AR £ 18,000,000 2 G 3 &
The increased capital has been fully paid as at 31 December 2011. 28,500,000 3G o ST HE N A 2L 2011

AE12 H 31 HBREHE -

(5) Pursuant to the approval dated 10 October 2011 issued by The People’s 5) RAE20114-10 H 10 H 7 50 A R BT
Government of Nanjing, the registered capital of Nanjing Soft was increased B A o B AT AR S I R AR
from USD 10,000,000 to USD10,500,000. The increased capital has been 10,000,000 £ T 4 % 10,500,000 3 JC » ff
fully paid as at 31 December 2011. SN BAS B A 2011 4F 12 7 31 H & Bk

oo

(6) Pursuant to the approval dated 21 November 2011 issued by Xuzhou (6) HRPEHRIN L R 2011 4E 11 H 21 H
Administration of Industry and Commerce, the Chinese name of Suining BE AL E o MESESF R4S 2 P SC RSt
Shufete was changed from “MESEEFIRFFEESEA FRA R to “HRIM T A R [ 8 A A S AT BR A ) | e AR
FEAMRAF. THEHERRAR ] -

(7)  None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the (7) SRR A A B B 2 R~ el

Company’s listed securities during the year and none of the subsidiaries had

issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

VE Il AR 4 /) LT RE S - WS 2 R IR R AR
G B AT A ] (205 B 5
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HE20114E12H 31 H R4

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. AN BRI #

OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the TR EAR » AN J BRI R AL

reporting period includes:

2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREE T 6 NRHET T

Non-current Assets I B B
Other receivables and prepayments LAt M W B TR - 149,615
Investment in subsidiaries (Note 44) AR A F 2 BEE (At 44) 460,038 10,038
460,038 159,653
Current Assets T B A A
Dividends recevables from subsidiaries JRE Wi B e A ) A S 178,957 80,000
Other receivables and prepayments HoAh S K R TR R 3,977 52,941
Available-for-sales investments Al R 75,611 -
Bank balances and cash SRATES B M4 86,279 13,057
344,824 145,998
Current Liability ik BER
Other payables Ho A JREA 3T 33,547 79,402
Net current assets it Y R 311,277 66,596
Total assets less current liability H U S D B A 771,315 226,249
Capital and reserves A itk i
Share capital JleA 202,087 49,271
Reserves (Note 45) Ml (M1t 45) 569,228 176,978

Total equity MO AR 771,315 226,249
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BE 2011412 A 31 H L4

44. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

44. RIHIE A ¥ BE

2011 2010
2011 4 2010 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T NS B
Unquoted share capital/registered R A FEMBA -
capital, at cost Fie A
At beginning of the year W) * *
Additions (note (1)) INE (K D) 250,000 -
At end of the year R 250,000 -
Deemed investment in subsidiaries 525 T BB A R BB
— waiver of balances due from — A G B AR g 2 E 1Y
subsidiaries AR
At beginning of the year ) 1,566 1,566
Additions (note (2)) N (M 2) 200,000 -
At end of the year AR 201,566 1,566
Deemed investment in subsidiaries 525 T BB A R BB
— share options granted to the — T BT A ) R
subsidiaries’ (note (3)) (7L (3))
employees 3=
At beginning of the year FEY) 8,472 2,546
Additions NE - 6,525
Transfer out on disposal of a subsidiary LA — [ R ) 1 - (599)
At end of the year R 8,472 8,472
460,038 10,038
Notes: [t EE -
(1) The amount represents additional capital injection pursuant to the approval of (1) ZEHIEEHE 2011412 H 31 B4R
board of directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2011. AEAN R HE S G A A RS AR T
% o
(2)  The amount represents additions on deemed investment in subsidiaries arising (2) ARSI 2011 R A e
from waivers of balances due from two subsidiaries as approved by the Board A AT [T PR 2 ) 45 0 A (A0 A
of Directors of the Company in 2011. A 2 1 1 5 S 3 g
(3) The deemed investment in subsidiaries arises from the share options granted 3) A5 25 7 RS 2 ) A 8 Y R AR i I o

under the Hongguo Singapore Share Option Scheme to the subsidiaries’

employees by the Company. Detail of the share options granted is set out in

Note 34.

I PR R ) A 2 ) 1) A JE A R AR B
W PRI 2 2E o 452 L D PIROREE G 17 S B 5
34 -
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#2014 124 31 H L4
45. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 45. KRR W Z Gl
Share
Share option Accumulated
premium reserve profits Total
i Pt
JBe A i 0 ffl REshA it

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR#TIE ARKTL ARWTILE ARKTIL

At 1 January 2010 J#20104E1 ] 1 H 98,093 3,074 34,670 135,837

Net profit and total comprehensive 4 A1 A1 ] 5 2 17 i i 4038

income for the year - - 225,214 225214
Recognition of equity-settled share  Fs8 A BCRESS 2 DU 1 7

based payments (Note 34) FEBER AT (M 34) - 7,502 - 7,502
Transfer on cancellation of T LA RCRESS 2 LA 3 B

equity-settled share based SEB Y ST IR (B3 34)

payments (Note 34) - (10,576) 10,576 —
Dividend paid (Note 13) TR (it 13) - - (191,575)  (191,575)
At 31 December 2010 2010412 H31 H 98,093 - 78,885 176,978

Net profit and total comprehensive 4 [ 46 1] K 22 1 i 2 48 57

income for the year - - 73,820 73,820
Issuance of new shares BATHA 411,949 - = 411,949
Cost of issue of new shares BATH IR A (29,078) - = (29,078)
Dividend paid (Note 13) EAIE (Mt 13) - - (64,441) (64,441)

At 31 December 2011 20114E 12 31 H 480,964 - 88,264 569,228
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A
Year ended 31 December
BE12H31 HIL4EE

2008 2009 2010 2011
2008 4 2009 4 2010 4F 2011 4¢
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWET T INEY T ARH¥FIt AR¥ET I8

Financial results 105 2 4
Revenue I 5 1,043,959 1,284,924 1,574,963 2,043,696

Net profit for the year from A HERE AR 2T
continuing operations [ 4F A LR 106,844 91,033 172,062 290,178

As at 31 December

W12H31H
2008 2009 2010 2011
2008 4F 2009 4F 2010 4F 2011 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETT ANRHET T PN T AR Tt

Balance sheet summary HAERME
Total assets % YUE 780,052 943,778 996,793 1,731,027
Total liabilities j=Kis ko 205,477 287,474 354,707 327,517

Equity atributable to owners A/~ R #EA A
of the Company JREAS HE 45 574,575 656,304 642,086 1,403,510




C. banner International Holdings Limited

T B E BB A R A
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